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Respected shareholders of the Saudi Electricity Company 
Peace be upon you and God's mercy and blessings,
The Board of Directors of the Saudi Electricity Company, first and foremost, expresses sincere thanks, appreciation,  
and gratitude to the Custodian of the Two Holy Mosques King Abdullah bin Abdul Aziz Al-Saud, and His Royal 
Highness Prince Salman bin Abdul Aziz, Crown Prince, Deputy Prime Minister and Minister of Defense, and 
His Royal Highness Prince Muqrin bin Abdul Aziz Second Deputy Prime Minister. May Allah bless them for their 
support, which has enabled the company to progress with its initiatives and keep pace with the increasing growth 
in electric energy demand.
At its fourth session in 2012, the Board of Directors identified priority objectives, the most important of which 
were: to complete the company’s restructuring program, apply corporate governance practices, and to address 
the situation of non-productive staff (alignment). Over the next ten years, the company aims to expand renewable 
energy projects and promote, develop, and strengthen its financial dealings. SEC will also work to address 
accumulated debts and dues, promote, develop, and strengthen its internal auditing system as well as establish a 
risk management mechanism in addition to adopting a program to replace outdated generation units to optimize 
fuel efficiency and reduce diesel consumption. The company also believes it vital to establish an engineering 
company owned by SEC or to contribute to the ownership of the design work, supervision, and management of 
engineering projects. SEC will continue in its efforts to encourage, motivate, and support local and global business 
expansion in the construction development sector and will commit to purchasing electricity from these companies. 
Other objectives include the establishment of a study, research, and development arm that meets the needs of 
the company and is commensurate with its status, in addition to enhancing technical cooperation internationally 
and domestically.
The Board of Directors is also pleased to present to our valued shareholders the annual report on the performance 
of the company and its financial results for the fiscal year ending 12/31/2012. This was achieved thanks to God 
and thanks to the efforts made by all the company's activities to improve the quality of our performance and 
capabilities, achieve the aspirations of our shareholders, and gain their trust as well as that of our customers. In 
2012, the company continued the implementation of several projects in the areas of generation, transmission, and 
distribution of electric energy to keep up with the growing demand for electric power. The power stations have 
been strengthened with a total generating capacity of 2,039 MW. It has also enhanced the power transmission 
networks with 30 new transmission substations and added networks with a length of 1,182 km circular. In the 
area of distribution and customer service, electric service has been delivered to 194 localities and 414,000 new 
customers – an increase in capacity of 6.2%. The Saudi Electricity Company continued in the establishment of its 
main electrical interconnection projects within the framework of a plan to complete the construction of the national 
grid for power transmission.
The abovementioned electrical interconnection projects are considered a strategic objective of the company, with 
96% of the national plan completed to electrically connect regions of the Kingdom on the extra-high voltage 380 
KV grid. These projects will contribute in strengthening the reserves and electric power exchange between all 
regions and ensure that the power plants are economically efficient.
In the area of human resources, the company has taken a number of decisions that aim to continue to develop and 
promote an optimal work environment that helps motivate employees, improve productivity, and raise efficiency. In 
line with national strategy, the company continued to make Saudization one of its key goals. 

SEC proceeded to search for a national workforce qualified and trained to a high degree of efficiency and 
effectiveness, increasing the proportion of its nationalized staff to reach 87.58 %. Staff productivity increased with 
employee share of sold energy reaching 9,089 MWH. and the ratio of customers to employees reaching 255:1. 
The Board of Directors confirms that the company has worked to comply with regulations and instructions of the 
Capital Market Authority, and made sure to adhere to and abide by the instructions of transparency and disclosure 
contained in Article 43 of the registration rules and corporate governance regulations issued by the Capital Market 
Authority (CMA).

1- Description of the company’s main activities
The principal activity of the company is the generation, transmission, and distribution of electric power. 
The company is a leading producer of electric energy throughout all the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, and it 
provides its services to various sectors of the government, including industrial, agricultural, commercial, and 
residential sectors.
The company's main activities consist of generation, transmission, and distribution of electric power. Its 
organizational structure comprises regulatory power key activities (business units) operating in generation, 
transmission, distribution, customer services, joint regulatory activities, and support. The latter are, namely: 
financial, engineering and projects, human resources, general services and supply contracts, planning and 
performance monitoring, internal audit, legal affairs, public affairs, research and development, and development 
projects of independent producers.

The following is a description of the company's main activities and their impact on the size of 
the business
The main business of the company is electric power generation, transmission, and distribution. Services are 
provided to customers and the company works on the development of selling prices between generation, 
transmission, and distribution and customer services. The company currently generates revenues from the sale of 
electricity to the consumer, as per the official pricing stipulated by the state. The company was formed in 2012; 
the implementation of the separation plan of the main activities of the company-owned sub-companies, and 
revenues and expenses will be determined for each entity alone upon its founding. The National Grid SA began 
work on 1/1/2012.
Our Distribution and Customer Services and Finance activity collect the electricity sales revenue from the various 
categories of customers. The following table shows the volume of fixed assets for each activity in proportion to 
operating expenses.

Activity Proportion of fixed assets Percentage of operating expenses

Generation 41% 46%

National Grid SA  31% 28%

Distribution and customer services 27% 24%

Support regulatory functions 1% 2%

Gross 100% 100%
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Below is a description of the nature of the company’s business activities and its most important achievements:
A) Power Generation Activity
Power generation is considered the company’s principal activity. Its mission is to provide energy and increase its electricity generating 
capacity to meet the growing demand for electric power while optimizing its resources. Its aim is to reduce the cost of electrical energy 
production and to realize the company’s main objectives.
The energy produced by power plants is considered the pillar of the company’s electricity production, comprising 77.3% of the total energy 
available for sale in the Kingdom across different categories of consumers. The activity plans focus on the operation and maintenance of 
power plants and enhancing their capacity to meet the growth in demand for electric power. Working toward this goal, the company in 
2012 added 2,039 MW, with an increase of 4.86% of the actual capacity existing at the end of 2011. The added capacity is distributed 
as follows:

Central Sector:
• 8 gas units in Power Plant 10 generating station (each with a capacity of 59 MW) with total added capacity of 472 MW.
• 8 gas units in Al-Qassim generating station (each with a capacity of 59 MW) with total added capacity of 472 MW.
• 4 gas units in Hail Al-Thani generating station (each with a capacity of 63 MW) with total added capacity of 252 MW.

Eastern Sector:
• 3 gas units in Qurayyah Power Plant (each with a capacity of 127 MW) with total added capacity of 381 MW.
• 2 gas units in the Qurayyat generating station (each with a capacity of 70 MW) with total added capacity of 140 MW.
• 2 gas units in the Rahfaa generating station (each with a capacity of 69 MW) with total added capacity of 138 MW.
• 1 gas unit in the Al-Jouf generating station (each with a capacity of 60 MW) with total added capacity of 60 MW.

Western sector:
• 2 gas units in the Tabuk 2 generating station (each with a capacity of 62 MW) with total added capacity of 124 MW.

B) The National Grid SA
The Saudi Electricity Company wholly owns the National Grid SA, which began operation on 1/1/2012. The company's structure includes 
6 key activities which are: operations and control, maintenance, planning, engineering, entrepreneurial activity and technical services, in 
addition to the three central departments.
The board of directors of the National Grid SA consists of 6 members: Dr. Fahad Bin Saleh Al-Sultan (Chairman of the Board), Engineer Saad 
Hamad Al-Mansour (Deputy President), Engineer Mohamed Awad Al-Juaid (member), Mr. Ahmed Mohammed Al-Jugaiman (member), 
Engineer Walid Abdullah Romaih (member) and Dr. Saleh Abdul Rahman Al-Alayan (member).
The functions of the National Grid SA are: operating and maintaining the electric grid voltage (110-380 KV), guaranteeing high reliability 
and stability to ensure the delivery of electric power to the loads centers in all parts of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, and enhancing the 
electrical grid in the transmission stations and connecting lines of higher voltage 110-132 KV, through multiple stages including activity of 
planning, designing and implementing of projects, and ensuring the continuity of program development and operation in various fields.
The company's mission is operating the electrical system and transmitting electrical energy (110-320 KV) from the production sites to its 
consumption centers, studying the loads expectations and developing plans to strengthen the electrical system to meet the expected 
loads. In addition, the company is committed to communicating with key participants to identify and serve their needs by coordinating 
with independent producers and signing energy purchase and exchange agreements, and by representing the company as a buyer from 
independent producers.

1211



The plans and objectives of the transmission company are the promotion of electricity supply while reducing costs, and continuing to work 
on the completion of the national electric network. During 2012 the company completed a number of new projects in addition to enhancing 
existing projects with the aim of improving, developing, and upgrading the transmission networks. In the following, we offer a review of the 
most important achievements of the transmission company.

Transmission networks:
Overhead circuits and underground cables were added to the existing networks, amounting to 1,182 km circular and representing 2.3% 
of the existing networks at the end of 2011. These are as follows::
• Ultra-high volage level 380 KV, 544.3 km circular were added, of which 33.5 km circular are underground cables and 510.8 km circular 

are overhead networks.
• Ultra-high voltage level 230 KV, 14.8 km circular were added, of which 1.8 km circular are underground cables and 13 km circular are 

overhead networks.
• High voltage level 132 KV, 279.1 km circular were added, of which 61.9 km circular are underground cables and 217.2 km circular are 

overhead networks.
• High voltage level 115 KV, 86.8 km circular were added, of which 52 km circular are underground cables and 34.8  km circular are 

overhead networks.
• High voltage level 110 KV, 257 km circular were added, of which 132.1 km circular are underground cables and 124.9 km circular are 

overhead networks.

Transmission substations:
30 new transmission substations have been running, including 84 transformers, bringing the total number of new transformers  to 103, 
with a capacity of 12,122 MVA, detailed as follows:
• Establishing of 30 new transmission substations with 84 new transformers with a total capacity 6,933 MVA.
• Enhancing 12 transmission substations with 19 transformers with a capacity of 5,189 MVA.
• Strengthening the substations with higher capacity.
• Adding 1,336 circuit breakers including 391 circuit breakers for 110 KV and higher, and 945 circuit breakers for 69 KV and lower.

C) Distribution and Customer Services:
The company receives energy from transmission networks and is tasked with distributing it to provide customers highly reliable, safe 
electricity services. The company is working on the issuance and distribution of electricity bills to each customer, and performs its annual 
plans and programs to provide high levels of quality services through the use of the latest technologies and to facilitate the procedures for 
obtaining services.
The activity plans include a number of goals, objectives, and performance standards, including upgrading the speed of connecting 
electrical service for new customers in cities, villages, residential compounds, and continuous improvement of distribution networks 
to ensure their performance level, raising energy efficiency, facilitating the procedures for delivering and streamlining electrical service, 
developing customers service centers, applying the latest technologies, developing staff skills in calculating subscriber consumption and 
bill reading, and constant attention to raising the efficiency and the performance of frontline staff.
The Distribution and Customer Services department made a number of achievements in 2012, the most important of which are:
• Adding new power distribution transformer, 69 KV and below, accounting to 29,394 transformers with an increase of 7.5% of the total 

distribution transformers at the end of 2011, and total capacity of 15,556 MVA, representing 8.9% of the capacities at the end of 2011.
• Adding distribution networks and underground cables, 69 KV and below, with a total length of 29,207 km circular. The rise represents 

a 7% increase in total network at the end of 2011.
• Delivering electrical services to 414,024 new customers.
• Delivering electrical services to 194 new localities.

D) Financial activity:
The company succeeded in maintaining its credit rating, which was endorsed by global institutions specializing in credit ratings, thus 
confirming the safety of its strategic orientations and the success of its administrative and operational policies in addition to its management. 
These positive ratings have supported the company in its efforts to implement its financial policy and promote its financial position. It has 
also guaranteed necessary cash flow to spend on projects such as the issuance of Islamic bank bonds and obtaining different commercial 
loans. These outcomes have resulted in the acquisition of financing for the company’s projects under the most optimal conditions and the 
most competitive prices.

Credit rating:
The company’s credit rating is considered the highest in the Kingdom, consecutively awarded by Standard & Poor’s, Fitch, and Moody’s 
A1/AA-/AA-. For major projects, the company has continued to secure funding agreements and diversify its funding sources which are 
as follows:

First: Funding support from the Export-Import Bank of Korea (Kexim):
The company signed a long-term loan agreement worth US 1,400 million equivalent to SAR 5.25 billion with a repayment period of up to 15 
years. The loan will be repaid in equal installments every six months for an estimated 12 years after a grace period of 3 years. Guarantees 
come from the Export-Import Bank of Korea and K-Sure, in addition to direct funding from the Export-Import Bank of Korea (Kexim) along 
with a group of international banks led by HSBC group, Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi, Citibank, Sumitomo Mitsui Corporation, Mizuho Bank 
and the German Development Bank of International Exports Projects Finance. The funding will go toward purchasing equipment from the 
Korean company Doosan to finance Rabigh VI station lying north of the city of Jeddah and overlooking the Red Sea shore.

Second: Loan issuance of international bonds:
The company issued bonds valued at $1,750 million (equivalent to SAR 6.6 billion including two versions of the bonds certificates; the first 
for $500 million maturing after five years and yielding a fixed rate of 2.665%, and the second tranche worth $1,250 million after ten years 
with a fixed income of 4.211%. The return will be paid on each of the two tranches every six months starting 2012. The version has been 
customized to a group of investors in Europe and the Middle East and Asia. It has also been issued in Saudi Arabia only in accordance 
with national regulations.

Financial separation between the activities of the company:
In preparation for the restructuring of the company’s activities, numerous actions have been taken on the financial level:
• Creating a consistent financial system and transforming the company’s various activities into subsidiary companies
• Transforming the company’s various activities into profit centers attracting investments
   ○ Applying the service level agreement between the activities
   ○ Rating the calculated capital cost by activity
   ○ Preparing and finalizing the power purchase agreements between the holding 
company and electricity generating companies as well as the transmission and distribution network rental.

E) Human Resources Activity
The company considers the development of human resources the basis of its development and the growth of its business. As such 
the company is keen to develop human resources through specialized programs, mapping out their career paths, including raising and 
ensuring their competencies to take on all positions in the company.
In 2012, 1,190 graduates from the company’s training institutes joined the team, bringing the number of on-the-job trainees at the end 
of the year to 1,460. Some 761 university graduates were employed and were placed in the professional development program (PDP), 
bringing the number of university graduate trainees to 1,109 by the end of 2012.
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These efforts resulted in significant growth in the field of localizing jobs, boosting nationalization rate by the end of 2012 to 87.58% of the 
total workforce’s 29,006 employees. In recognition of its outstanding efforts in the field of attracting, recruiting, and training Saudis, the 
company received several shields, prizes, and certificates of appreciation for its prominent role in this area.
In the area of training and development of skills, capabilities, and human resources, the company in 2012 implemented several programs, 
which included enrolling staff in internal and external training courses with a total of 35,455 participants. Various training programs con-
tinued to be provided through self E-learning (I- Learn) where the number of participants by the end of 2012 reached 3,283. In addition, 
staff leaders were offered tailored development training based on their assessment at the company’s centers, each with a capacity of 200 
participants. A total 53 exceptional staff were placed in the development program aimed at preparing employees with leadership skills to 
fill future managerial positions in the company. Comprehensive quality programs continued to grow, as the number of new teams during 
the year reached 140, bringing the total number of teams to 1,889. In the field of creativity and excellence of staff, 1,034 proposals were 
presented during the year, giving a total of 5,218, of which 2,663 were approved. This program included 1,985 employees of the month 
with a total of 12,079 employees. Employees of the year reached 448, with a total of 3,620 employees, to start the implementation of the 
fourth phase of the balanced Scorecard project.
Under the sponsorship of the Prince of Al-Riyadh, the Fifteenth quality forum was launched with the slogan (Towards Organizational Excel-
lence), as was the quality gallery Creativity Oasis. With a huge audience exceeding 780 guests in attendance, and in the presence of key 
companies and international speakers, total of 11 employment contracts were approved. The outstanding creative ideas of the staff were 
presented at the associated exhibition. A total number of 493 students completed the company’s summer training, and 778 students 
completed the student cooperative training program.

F) Program for Private Sector Participation in Electricity Projects:
The company is aware of the importance of economic developments taking place in the Kingdom and that require providing enormous 
amounts of electric power to keep abreast of developments. Key to its progress was establishing a large number of power-generating 
plants through direct investments by the company and through the participation of investments coming from the private sector as part of 
the Company’s Program for Private Sector Participation in the Electricity Projects IPPs, which was approved in 2007. A dedicated team 
was formed to supervise these projects and in order to support this team, the company signed contracts with international consulting firms 
with proven experience and equipped with the knowledge to execute technical, legal, and financial matters related to the independent 
electric power production projects. The company targeted, in the first stage of the program, 30% of the transmission projects on a build-
own-operate basis with investments estimated at more than SAR 36 billion, as detailed below:
• The first project is in Rabigh in the Western Region for a power-generating station with a capacity of 1,204 MW. A contract was signed 

during the second quarter of 2009 with a consortium of companies namely Korea Electric Power Company KEPCO and ACWA Power 
International (ACWA Power). Production will begin in the second quarter of 2012 and the project will be completed in 2013.

• The second project is in Dharma in the Riyadh area for a power-generating station with a capacity of 1,729 MW. A contract was signed 
during the second quarter of 2010 with a consortium of companies namely Suez Company, Al-Jomaih Group, and Sojitz Company. 
Production will begin in the second quarter of 2012 and the project will be completed in 2013.

• The third project is in Qurayyah in the Eastern Region for a power-generating station with a capacity of 3,927 MW. A contract was 
signed during the third quarter on 21/9/011 with a consortium of companies namely ACWA Power International and Samsung C&T 
Corporation. Production will begin in the first quarter of 2014 and the project will be completed in the third quarter of the same year.

• The fourth project Rabigh – 2 will be in Rabigh in the Western Region with a capacity of 1800 MW. The financial offers have been 
opened for the five bids submitted on 22/10/2012. Currently, the company is reviewing the offer put forth by the successful bid, which 
was won by the Aqua Pure International, Samsung C & T and the Port Fund.



The following table shows the draft program of private sector participation in the production of electricity (IPP) – (The Saudi Electricity 
Company purchases the complete production of these electricity projects)

Project name The productive capacity of 
the project (MW)

Private sector investment 
in the project’s capital

Project completion date

Rabigh Project for independent 
production
(project under implementation) 

1,204 80% 1/4/2013

Riyadh Project 11
for the independent production
(project under implementation)

1,729 50% 20/3/2013

Qurayyah Project 1
for the independent production 
project is in financial closure phase 

3,927 50% 1/7/2014

Rabigh Project 2
for the independent production

1,800 50% 2017

Dheba Project 1
independent production
(planned)

550 50% 2017

Dheba Project 2
independent production
(planned)

1,800 50% 2018

G) Shareholders
The company seeks to achieve the aspirations of the shareholders, the development of their rights, and facilitating their access to information. 
It attaches great importance to enhancing the quality of disclosure of financial results and develops important and fundamental changes 
in terms of quantity, type, and timing. The company continued its efforts to promote ways to communicate with the shareholders and 
encourage them to put certificates of their shares in investment portfolios, making it easier to deposit their dividends in their portfolios at 
different banks during the first day of dividend disbursement. The company is always keen to communicate effectively with the concerned 
authorities in the financial market, exchange information related to the company with investors, financial and investment institutions. The 
company also takes into account the application of the provisions contained in the corporate governance regulation, particularly with 
regard to the rights of shareholders. It also strives to comply with the instructions and procedures relating to disclosure and transparency, 
as well as streamlining its internal systems with the financial market system and its implementing regulations.

2 - Description of the plans and decisions of the company’s mission and future prospects:
A) Restructuring of the Company’s Activities
The Saudi Electricity Company, since its inception, has sought to adopt the best method to implement the restructuring program and 
deliver the national requirements of a competitive market. It aims to achieve better, more widespread electricity services that can be 
provided to the customers without affecting the continuity of the service or the obligations and responsibilities of the company toward 
energy security while continuing to increase efficiency and reduce cost.

In this context, the Board of Directors has mainstreamed the Company's turnkey activities into four generating companies: a power 
transmission company and a distribution company all owned by the Saudi Electricity Company, which fall within the responsibilities of the 
electrical system planning, corporate financing of all projects, and providing common services to them. The National Grid SA was launched 
in early 2012, after completing the necessary procedures, transferring its assets, and preparing their organizational structures. The Saudi 
Electricity Company also embarked on the procedures of establishing generation and distribution companies. These are expected to begin 
work before the end of 2013.

B) Plans and future expectations
• As part of the company’s plan to meet the growing increase in loads and electric power, new generation capacities of 2,844 MW will 

be added at company's power stations during 2013 and 13,247 MW in 2014–2018.
• Within the program of private sector participation to increase generation capacity, 1,860 MW will be added in 2013 and 12,618 MW 

during 2014–2018.
• As part of the company's plan to strengthen the transmission networks and increase reliability, transmission lines will be added in 2013 

measuring 5,203 km circular. The total length of transmission lines added in 2014–2018 is 25,372 km circular. Also, 68 transmission 
substations will be built during 2013, bringing the total number of transmission substations added in 2014-2018 to 300.

• Electricity services will be delivered to more than 423 thousand new customer during 2013, at a cost of SAR 5,061 million. This will bring 
the number of new customer in 2014–2018 to more than 2,468 at a delivery cost of SAR 30,245 million. The total number of customer 
at the end of 2018 is expected to total 9.6 million.

• As part of the development plan for the urban areas in the Kingdom, electricity services will reach 170 residential communities in 2013, 
bringing the total number of residential communities with electricity services in 2014–2018 to 490.

• To enhance the distribution networks, distribution lines measuring 27 thousand km will be added in 2013, bringing the total lengths of 
lines of added distribution network in 2014–2018 to 161 thousand km. Up to 25 thousand transformers will be added in 2013, bringing 
the total number of transformers added in 2014–2018 to 133 transformers.

• The company seeks, through development programs, to raise the efficiency of its staff and provide them with the necessary training 
to perform their work efficiently and effectively. The number of participants in the short development courses was 42,239 participants 
in 2013, the proportion of development to working days 2.3%. Within the framework of the program and community service pursued 
by the company, in 2013 the company will employ 820 new university graduates in addition to enrolling 2,539 graduate trainees from 
secondary schools and technical colleges in its training programs. Thus, the rate of Saudi employees will be 86.4% in 2013, and will 
reach approximately 91.1% at the end of 2018.

C) Risks and difficulties the company may face
There are some risks that the company may encounter, such as risks related to the production of electric power in the near term until 
2014–2018 and risks related to suppliers, customers and partners, development, the rapid change in technology, high material prices, 
fuel-use change, regulations governing the protection of the environment, and risks associated with maintaining human competencies.

Risks and difficulties associated with the production, transmission and distribution of electricity
There are also risks as a result of large annual increase in electrical loads due to the significant growth and development in all sectors, with 
loads going up more than 7% in 2012, 3,572 MW compared to 2011 m. Securing paths, locations of the power stations, overhead lines 
and necessary funds for projects (where the average annual investment spending reached over $37 billion) have also hindered project start 
dates. To solve these difficulties, the company requires the following:
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1. Appropriate generating reserve 10 - 15% from peak load must be made available so the system is able to:
• Cope with any potential delay or any other regulatory procedural mistake during the process of awarding generating unit 

contracts required.
• Avoid delay in the implementation of the generation project by the private sector (IPP).
• Avoid amortization or separation of loads in cases of forced outage of some generating units.

2.  Providing a strong transmission network linking the various regions of the Kingdom that can be relied on to 
transmit and exchange energy between different regions.

3. Finding suitable electric tariffs that reflect the true cost to cover the operating costs and capital investments for 
the production, transmission and distribution of energy, with a profitable return on investment.

Risks and difficulties related to suppliers, customers and partners
The company faces risks associated with suppliers, customers, and partners in the field of private sector investments in cogeneration 
projects or projects that produce electricity. The risks are as follows:
• The increasing demand for the establishment of power plants exacerbates global competition, especially after the challenges posed 

by rapid industrial developments. This coincides with the increase in demand for energy within the Kingdom due to the significant 
population growth and expansion in infrastructure development across all regions and cities of the Kingdom, and the establishment of 
industrial, commercial, and large urban projects.

• The commitment to preserving the environment and the consequent increase in production costs.
• Attracting foreign and national capital to raise the continuous investment growth rates in this area, and to attract modern technologies.
• The rise in prices of crude oil, cost of shipping, insurance, and labor wages due to the scarcity of raw materials in the global market. 

Regional conflicts and the war risks have also had an impact.

Risks associated with the laws and provisions governing the electricity sector in the Kingdom
The company faces risks associated with the regulations and provisions governing the electricity sector through; risk systems adjustment, 
the regulations and decisions of the Organization of the electricity sector.

Risks and difficulties associated with the change and rapid development in technology
There are risks due to the rapid development in technology and the rising cost of local and international technological software and 
applications. The company selects the best modern techniques applied by companies of similar standing both locally and internationally, 
that have proven successful in offering service and that are produced by specialized international companies, in order to ensure the best 
price and the continuity of technical support and development.

Risks and difficulties associated with maintaining human competencies
There are risks due to attractive opportunities in the local market resulting in the loss of qualified personnel to companies and other 
institutions. The company is currently trying to retain personnel by initiating several procedures and regulations to maintain the national 
competencies and encourage them to continue to work with the company, such as a thrift and savings fund system, affordable housing 
loans, training and scholarships abroad.

3 - Summary of Financial Results
The following is a summary of the balance sheet and income statements of the company. The following tables show the details of assets, 
liabilities, shareholders equity, income, expenses and net profit for the fiscal year 2012, compared to the previous four financial years. 
Further details can be found in the accompanying financial statements and the notes.

A) Financial Position Statement                                                                                 Numbers in thousand Saudi Riyal

	 			 	 	 	 	 	 														

Statement 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Current assets 27,488,372 29,750,299 26,532,905 22,292,513 25,010,507

Other long-term assets 42,445,861 25,030,853 28,704,036 34,933,680 22,263,910

Net fixed assets 168,652,100 158,673,259 135,634,986 109,359,611 98,107,946

Total assets 238,586,333 213,454,411 190,871,927 166,585,804 145,382,363

Current liabilities 40,712,906 38,980,244 27,467,578   21,955,062 17,743,574

Long-term loans 32,759,976 27,581,788 29,632,390 18,511,857 9,647,991

Other liabilities 111,144,155 94,999,301 83,502,251 77,193,681 69,438,177

Total liabilities 184,617,037 161,561,333 140,602,219 117,660,600 96,829,742

Paid-up capital 41,665,938 41,665,938 41,665,938 41,665,938 41,665,938

Reserves and  
retained earnings 12,303,358 10,227,140 8,603,770 7,259,266 6,886,683

Shareholders equity 53,969,296 51,893,078 50,269,708 48,925,204 48,552,621

Total liabilities and 
shareholders equity 238,586,333 213,454,411 190,871,927 166,585,804 145,382,363
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B) Income statement                                                                                              Numbers in thousand Saudi Riyal 

Statement 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Operating income 33,646,259 30,569,598 27,910,993 23,850,949 22,288,742 

Cost of sales (30,042,846) (27,868,105) (25,318,332) (22,410,353) (21,013,126)

Gross Profit 3,603,413 2,701,493 2,592,661 1,440,596 1,275,616 

General and 
administrative expenses (703,985) (769,818) (667,119) (517,892) (472,195)

Total operating expenses (30,746,831) (28,637,923) (25,985,451) (22,928,245) (21,485,321)

Comparison of assets and liabilities with shareholders equity
during the years 2008-2012

Comparison of the current assets and non-current assets with the total assets
during the years 2008-2012

Comparison of the total current and non-current liabilities, and government 
loans with the total liabilities during the years 2008-2012

Numbers in thousand Saudi Riyal

Total liabilitiesGovernment loanNon-current liabilitiesCurrent liabilities
Total liabilitiesTotal assets Total shareholders' equity

Total non-current assets Total assetsTotal current assets
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Operating income 2,899,428 1,931,675 1,925,542 922,704 803,421

Improving the productivity 
of human resources (634,268) (125,265) (75,142) (137,559) (39,375)

Other income and 
expenses (net) 295,906 406,749 428,688 357,491 340,401 

Net Profit 2,561,066 2,213,159 2,279,088 1,142,636 1,104,447 

List items across years of comparison have been reclassified to conform to 2012 classification.

4 - Geographical analysis of the company's revenues
The company’s business is spread across all regions of the Kingdom. The following table shows a geographical analysis of the com-
pany's sales by region (sectors) in which it operates.

Year Statement
Working Area

Total
Central Eastern Western South

2012 Revenue / sales 9,693,255 10,083,808 9,109,998 2,214,827 31,101,888

2011 Revenue / sales 8,941,528 9,392,065 8,026,692 1,920,209 28,280,494

5 - Clarification of the operating results compared to the previous year’s results

Statement 2012 2011 Changes + / -
Change 

percent (%)

Sales / revenues 33,646,259 30,569,598 3,076,661 10

Operating expenses (30,746,831) (28,637,923) (2,108,908) 7

Gross operating profit 2,899,428 1,931,675 967,753 50

Improving the productivity of 
human resources program (634,268) (125,265) (509,003) 406

Other income and expenses (net) 295,906 406,749 (110,843) (27)

Net profit or loss 2,561,066 2,213,159 347,907 16

The following is an analysis of the changes between 2012 and 2011:
• Sales: sales rose 10% as a result of the growing demand for electric power, and modification of tariff categories to government, 

commercial, and industrial.
• Operating profit: this increased due to the rise in the amount of energy sold.
• Zakat: this is calculated based on the zakat base and net profit rate.
• Net income: this increased due to the rise in the amount of energy sold.

Operating revenue, expenses, and net income during the years 2008-2012

Operating income Operating expenses Net profit (loss) for the period
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8 - Equity and debt instruments issued for each subsidiary
There are no shares and debt instruments issued by subsidiaries of the company inside or outside the Kingdom.

9 - The company’s policy in profit distribution 
Distribution of annual net profits (current) after deducting all general expenses and other costs is as follows:

10% of the net profit is set aside to form a statutory reserve. The General Assembly may discontinue this regular retainer when reserves 
reach half of the capital mentioned. The company's spare ratio could not exceed 10% of the net profit in order not to form another reserve 
and allocate it to a specific purpose or other purposes, taking into account the following:

• Subject to the provisions of Clause 2 of Item ii of the Council of Ministers Resolution No. 327 dated 24/9/1430 approving the extension 
of the government assignment of its share of the profit for ten years as of 30/12/1430. The remainder of the profits shall thereafter be 
distributed to the shareholders as an initial dividend of not less than 5% of the paid-up capital.

• Bonuses are allocated to members of the Board in accordance with the rules and regulations in force after deducting expenses, 
depreciation and reserves established by the General Assembly in the implementation of the provisions of the company's Articles 
of Association and after distributing dividends equivalent to at least 5% of the company's capital. This according to the company's 
regulations and the instructions issued by the Ministry Commerce and Industry.

• Any additional equity is distributed as a share of the profits or migrated to the coming years as approved by the General Assembly.

In 2012 the company achieved a net profit of SAR 2,561,066. This is after the deduction of Zakat and before the distribution of directors' 
remuneration. The board purposes the distribution of these profits in accordance with the Statute of the company as follows:

Details Thousands Saudi (SAR)

Net Profit 2,561,066

                                                  The following is deducted 

10% Statutory reserve 256,107

Dividend to shareholders (public individuals and the like) 547,252

Remuneration of the members of the board of directors 919

Retained earnings 1,756,788
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6 - Explanation of any deviation from the accounting standards
The financial statements were prepared for the company during the fiscal year ending December 31, 2012, in accordance with the 
generally accepted accounting standards in the Kingdom and issued by the Saudi Organization of Certified Public Accountants.

7 - Subsidiaries
The company owns stakes/shares in the capital of each of: Gulf Cooperation Council Interconnection Authority, the Water and Electricity 
Company, Sukuk Electricity Company, Daoiat Communications Company, the National Grid SA, and Dharma Electric Company, Hajr 
Electricity Production Company, and Rabigh Electricity Company as follows:

Subsidiaries
Place of 

incorporation
Activity 
location

Capital (SAR) Activity
Ownership 

percentage (%)

1

Gulf Cooperation 
Council 

Interconnection 
Authority

Saudi
Arabia

Gulf Arab 
states

1,407,000,000
US Dollar

Transfer energy between
state members 31.6%

2
Water and Electricity 

Company

Saudi 
Arabia

30,000,000 
SAR

Purchase and sale of electricity 
and purchase of the fuel that is 
needed to achieve its objectives

50%

3
Sukuk Electricity 

Company 500,000 SAR
Provide service and support for 

instruments and bonds issued by 
the Saudi Electricity Company

100%

4
Daoiat 

Communications 
Company

1,000,000 SAR
Creating, renting, managing 

and operating fiber-optic and 
electrical networks to provide 
telecommunications services

100%

5 The National Grid SA  10,000,000,000 
SAR

Electricity transmission and 
operation, controlling, maintaining 

and renting the transmission 
network lines capacity

100%

6
Dharma Electricity 

Company 4,000,00 SAR
Developing, creating, owning, 

operating and maintaining 
Dharma project for the 
production of electricity

50%

7
Hajr Electricity 

Production Company
10,000,000 

SAR

Owning, generating, producing, 
transmitting, and selling 

electricity to Qurayyah in the 
Eastern Province.

50%

8
Rabigh Electricity 

Company
10,000,000 

SAR
Developing, creating, owning, 
operating and maintaining the 

Rabigh project in Rabigh
20%



10 - Individual interest in Company shares
There is no interest in a category of shares to which anyone is entitled during the fiscal year ending December 31, 2012. The following table 
shows the list of names and shareholder ownership of 5% or more and any change in ownership during 2012:

Name
Number of shares 
at the beginning of 

the year

Ownership 
percentage at 
the beginning 

of the year

Net change in 
the number of 
shares during 

the year

Change 
percentage 
during the 

year

Total shares at 
year-end 

Total 
percentage 

of ownership 
at the end of 

the year

Government 
shares 3,096,175,320  74.31% - - 3,096,175,320  74.31%

Saudi 
Aramco 288,630,420 6.91% - - 288,630,420  6.91%

11 -The rights and interests of the Board of Directors members and senior executives in the shares and debt tools 
of the company:
 A) Rights and interests of the members of the Board of Directors in the shares and debt instruments of the 
company during the year 2012

Name Capacity
Beginning of the year End of the year Net 

Change

Change 
Percentage 

(%)
Share 

Numbers
Debt 

instruments
Share 

Numbers
Debt 

instruments

Saleh bin Hussein Al-Awajji Legal 1000 - 1000 - - -

Sulaiman bin Abdullah Alkadi Personal 1,050 - 1,050 - - -

Isam bin Alwan Al-Bayat Legal 1000 - 1000 - - -

Yousif bin Abdulaziz Al-Turki
Legal 1000 - 1000 - - -

Personal 25,750 - 25,750 - - -

Abdulaziz bin Saleh Al-Fereih Legal 1000 - 1000 - - -

Saleh bin Saad Al-Mehanna Legal 1000 - 1000 - - -

Ziad bin Mohammed Al-Shiha Legal 1000 - 1000 - - -

Ahmed bin Abdullah Al-Aqeel Personal 1000 - 1000 - - -

Saud bin Mohammed Al-Nemer Personal 150,000 - 1000 - 149,000 -

• Ownership and rates of change in the number of shares in the previous table is equal to zero because the number of shares owned and 
the percentage of the total shares of the company is 4,166,593,815 shares, which are considered marginal and almost equal to zero.

B) Rights and interests of senior executives, their spouses and their minor children in the shares and debt 
instruments of the company in 2012 

Name

Beginning of the year End of the year

Net change 
Change 

percentage	

(%)Shares 
number

Debt 
instruments

Shares 
number

Debt 
instruments

Osama bin Abdulwahab 
Khondena 2,250 - 2,250 - - -

Amer bin Mohammed Al-Swaha 6,195 - 6,195 - - -

• Ownership and rates of change in the number of shares in the previous table is equal to zero because the number of shares owned 
and percentage of the total shares of the company's 4,166,593,815 stocks are considered marginal and almost equal to zero.

12 - Information related to the company’s loans:
A) Statement of long-term commercial loans as of 31/12/2012                         Numbers in thousand Saudi Riyal 

Statement
Murabaha 

1
Murabaha 

2

Public 
Investment 

Fund

Canadian 
American
Exports 

Bank

French 
Exports 

Bank 

Bank of 
Korea's 
Exports 

(Akim Korea)

Bank of 
Tokyo 

Mitsubishi
Total

Total value of 
loans 6,000,000 5,000,000 2,583,375 4,125,000 3,709,000 5,250,000 1,875,000 28,542,375

End of 
repayment 2020 2025 2024 2021 2024 2026 2012 _

First-term loan 
balance as of 

1/1/2012 
4,636,364 500,000 2,583,375 3,410,480 3,709,570 _ 1,875,100 16,714,889

Withdrawn from 
the loans during 

the year
_ _ _ _ _ 107,169 _ 107,169

Actual 
outstanding 
loans during 

the year

(545,456) _ (107,468) (362,724) (266,325) _ (1,875,100) (3,157,073)

End-of-term 
loan balance as 
of 31/12/2012 

4,090,908 500,000 2,475,907 3,047,756 3,443,245 107,169 _ 13,664,985
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B) Statement of government loans as of 31/12/2012                                                 Numbers in Thousands (SAR) 

Statement
Government loan
 (Resulting from 

clearing)

The Ministry of Finance - 
loan from state (1)

The Ministry of Finance - 
loan from state (2)

Total

Total value of asset loans
Result of the State 

Clearing house 15,000,000 51,100,000 66,100,000

End of repayment _ 2034 2037 _

First-term loan balance as of 
1/1/2012 14,938,060 11,250,000 _ 26,188,060

Withdrawn from the loans 
during the year _ 3,750,000 10,220,000 13,970,000

Actual outstanding loans during 
the year _ _ _ _

Recorded as a difference 
between the current value and 

the value received
_ (9,391,097) (7,392,467) (16,783,564)

End-of-term loan balance as of 
31/12/2012 14,938,060 5,608,903 2,827,533 23,374,496

• Financial statements show the government loan to the company at present value according to the relevant accounting standards. The 
difference between the value received and the present value falls under long-term government receivables.

13 - Description of the categories and numbers of any debt instruments, convertible securities or contractual right 
to subscribe notes
There are no debt tools that can be transferred, financial contractual documents, right of subscription warrants or similar rights issued or 
granted by the company during the financial year that ended 31/12/2012.

14 - Description of conversion or subscription rights or contractual financial documents
There are no transfer or subscription rights under the transferable debt tools or financial contractual documents or similar rights issued or 
granted by the company during 2012.

15 - Description of recoverable debt tools 
There are no refunds purchases or cancellations to any recoverable debt tools on the part of the company.

16 - Board of Directors meetings and attendance record
The Board of Directors set 8 meetings in 2012. The following is a statement of the Board of Directors and the number of meetings attended 
by each member:

Name Title
Number of Meetings

Total

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

1 Saleh bin Hussein Al-Awajji Chairman of the 
Board ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü 8

2 Sulaiman bin Abdullah Alkadi Vice Chairman of 
the Board ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü 8

3 Isam bin Alwan Al-Bayat Board Member ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü 8

4 Saleh bin Saad Al-Mehanna Board Member ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü 8

5 Saud bin Mohammed Al-Nemer Board Member ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü 8

6 Abdulaziz bin Saleh Al-Fereih Board Member ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü 8

7 Yousif bin Abdulaziz Al-Turki Board Member ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü 8

8 Ahmed bin Abdullah Al-Aqeel Board Member ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü 8

9 Ziad bin Mohammed Al-Shiha Board Member ü X ü ü ü ü X ü 6

17 - Description of any transactions between the company and a related party
There are no transactions between the company and a related party during 2012.

18 - Interests in the contracts of the company
There are no contracts in 2012 of which the company was a party, or of which the Board of Directors, the chief executive, the financial 
official or any person that had a relationship with any of them, had interest in.

19 - Concessions on salaries, compensation and profits
There is no arrangement or agreement under which the waiver can concede the company's board members or senior executives for any 
salaries or compensations.

20 - Concessions of the shareholders for their rights in the profit
Based on the Council of Ministers Resolution No. 327 dated 24/9/1430, the government agreed to extend the waiver of the profit shares, 
which are distributed by the Saudi Electricity Company for a period of another ten years starting 30/12/1430. There are no arrangements 
or agreements during 2012 that state the concession of the shareholders to waive their right to the profit.
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21 - Regular due payments
The table below illustrates the value of entitlements to statutory bodies or regulatory bodies of the state

Statement
SAR

2012 2011

Customs duties 1,991 2,874

Zakat and tax 8,483 10,425

The General Organization for Social Insurance 673,097 661,066

Municipal fees 482,815 436,969

Other 7,317 6,843

Total 1,173,703 1,118,177

22 - Employees incentive programs
 A) Savings program
The company took the initiative to find a system to provide savings (optional) to motivate employees and strengthen their loyalty and 
belonging to the company, in an effort to raise the level of performance. The company has also worked on attracting qualified Saudi 
employees, motivating staff, and guiding them on benefiting from savings at retirement or separation from the service.
The company also deducts a portion of the salary to be invested for the benefit of the employee enrolled in the program; it chooses suitable 
areas for the company’s investment program funds based on the terms of the Islamic investment, in low-risk portfolios and in the manner 
that achieves the best for the staff involved.
The company contributes a share of 100% of the value of the monthly subscription for the employee, depositing it in their accounts. 
Employees’ contribution is calculated in accordance with the established and developed framework set by the company starting from 
10% at the completion of the first year of participation and up to 100% upon completion of the tenth year of participation. The employee’s 
benefits are calculated from this contribution in the case of the end of subscription according to the regular criteria. The following is a 
clarification of the change that occurred regarding the contribution of the personnel involved in the program and the value of their dues 
during the year:

Statement Employee’s contribution
Due to the staff from the company's

contribution 

Balance at the beginning of the year 210,856,384 52,711,305

Net value during 2012 42,196,681 33,314,155

End of the year balance 253,053,065 86,025,460



B) Loans program
For the third year running the company has continued to provide housing loans to Saudi employees according to program guidelines to 
finance the acquisition or construction of housing or completion of construction following a format compatible with the provisions of Islamic 
law Murabaha and funding up to (SAR 1,200,000). The repayment period extends to twenty years whereby the company bears 70% of 
the funding cost and the contribution by the company ceases at the end of the employee's service for any reason. A total 311 employees 
have benefited from the program.

23 - Accounting records, internal audit system and the company's ability to continue its activity
The company’s internal control system is designed to manage risks, maintain the company’s assets, and provide reasonable assurance 
of the authenticity of the financial reports that are prepared from existing accounting records. The company applied an integrated financial 
accounting system to record all financial transactions, guaranteeing that accounting records have been properly prepared, and that it has 
an independent management team for the internal audit liaising with the Audit Committee that carries out its functions in accordance with 
the approved internal audit rules by the Board of Directors. It examines the interior control system that is approved by the Board of Directors, 
by continuously ensuring its efficiency and effectiveness, and performs financial and operational audits to assess the company’s business. 
The Audit Committee overseen by the Governing Council considers the notes provided by the external auditors, the internal auditor, the 
results of their study of the efficiency and effectiveness of the internal control procedures of the company and draws recommendations 
related to the improvement and submits them to the Board of Directors. It also conducts the follow-up observations that arise as a result 
of those revisions and focus on the group notes that have a direct impact. The internal control system and the company are satisfied there 
is no doubt about its ability to continue its activities.

24 - Commitment to corporate governance regulation 
The company applies all the guidelines of most of the provisions stated in the Corporate Governance issued by the Capital Market 
Authority. The regulations are discussed for approval of the Board of Directors in its final form.

A) The provisions of the regulation yet to be applied
The table below shows the provisions of the regulations yet to be applied, while stating the reasons for the lack of application:

Article Item Article requirements Reasons for not applying

3 and 
item (A) of 
Article 4

2 The right to receive a share of the 
company's assets upon termination

In this regard the provisions of the companies will be 
applied in effect.

5
The right to monitor the work of the Board 
of Directors and sue the responsibility on 
the members of the Board.

The system includes the basic right of shareholders to sue 
the Board of Directors, while the statute does not include 
the Company's right to monitor the work of the Board of 
Directors, which is guaranteed by the companies.

Article Item Article requirements Reasons for not applying

5 A(1)

Have shareholders controlling 5% or more 
of the company's shares requested adding 
one or more subjects to the agenda of the 
General Assembly in the preparation?

Nothing prevents the shareholder who owns 5% or more of the 
company's shares to inform the company of what he wants 
to be included in the agenda of the Assembly. However, the 
company does not have a policy and internal procedures that 
state allowing shareholders to add a topic to the agenda of the 
Assembly, including the Corporate Governance project which 
is currently being prepared develop a written policy governing 
according to the requirements of the rules of governance.

6 B 
(1-2)

Does the system indicate the foundation 
of the company using the cumulative 
voting method?
In the event that the principle system 
of the company indicates using the 
cumulative voting method, was it used 
while voting on the selection of the 
current members of the Board of Directors 
of the General Assembly?

The company's system did not commit to applying the 
cumulative voting mechanism for the selection of members 
of the Governing Council. It wasn't also included in the 
provisions of the statutes of the company, which was 
adopted prior to the issuance of the rules of corporate 
governance and will be considered in applying the 
cumulative voting to select the members of the Board of 
Directors, who will represent the people in a future session.

8 -
Did the company put disclosure policies, 
procedures, and supervisory regulations in 
writing and in accordance with the system?

The company has a clear mechanism for the disclosure 
of the financial statements and the directors' report to the 
shareholders, and news and announcements of interest to the 
shareholders. Policies, procedures, and systems written for 
disclosure will be written in accordance with the Capital Market 
Authority and its implementing regulations, which will be 
included in the rules of Corporate Governance being prepared. 

10

C (1) Does the Governing Council adopt a 
special corporate governance system?

Completing preparing the rules of Corporate Governance in 
cooperation with specialized consulting firms in this area.

D (1)

Were the written policies, standards, 
and procedures specific and clearly 
formulated in the membership of the 
Governing Council and put  into effect?

The Corporate System is currently being implemented 
adhering to the instructions issued by the Ministry of 
Commerce and Industry for the membership of the Board 
of Directors. The policies, standards, and procedures for 
membership of the Board of Directors will be shown to 
the General Assembly of the Company at its next meeting 
scheduled to be held during April 2013.

3433



Article Item Article requirements Reasons for not applying

10

E (1)
Stakeholders’ compensation mechanisms in case of 
violation of their rights recognized by the regulations 
and protected by contracts.

There is some evidence and the rules that govern 
many parts of these requirements; the company will 
complete the development and documentation of the 
policies and mechanisms related to this subject.

E (2) Mechanisms for settling complaints or disputes that may 
arise between the company and other stakeholders.

Many of the rules that govern and apply to these 
requirements are in place; the company will complete 
the development and documentation of the policies 
and mechanisms related to this subject.

E (3)
Appropriate mechanisms to establish good relations 
with customers and suppliers, and to maintain the 
confidentiality of the information.

Many of the rules that govern and apply to these 
requirements are in place; the company will complete 
the development and documentation of policies and
mechanisms related to this subject.

E (4)

Rules of professional conduct for directors and 
employees of the company so that the consensus of 
professional and ethical standards and governing the 
relationship between them and the stakeholders.

Many of the rules that govern and apply to these 
requirements are in place; the company will complete 
the development and documentation of policies and 
mechanisms related to this subject.

E (5) The social contribution of the company.

Many of the rules that govern and apply to these 
requirements are in place; the company will complete 
the development and documentation of the policies 
and mechanisms related to this subject.

F

Were the policies and procedures put in writing 
that ensure respect for the company's rules and 
regulations and its commitment to the disclosure of 
material information to shareholders, creditors, and 
other stakeholders?

The company has a clear mechanism for the disclosure 
of financial statements, the report of the Board of 
Directors, advertisements, and news within the 
company. Policies and procedures will be developed 
in writing to ensure the obligation to disclose material 
information to shareholders, creditors and other 
stakeholders, and identify those responsible for the 
implementation and monitoring. It will include a list of 
corporate governance that is being

11 F

Did the Board of Directors ensure written procedures were 
established for the introduction of new Board members to 
the work of the company and, in particular, the financial 
and legal aspects as well as the training, if necessary?

The Council has procedures to introduce new 
members to the company but is written and will be 
included in the list of the corporate governance.

13 B (4) Did the Board of Directors approve the work regulations 
of all standing committees under its supervision?

Regulations of the standing committees under the 
supervision of the Board of Directors are detailed 
within the company's corporate governance project 
currently being prepared.

B) Composition of the Board of Directors and classification of membership
The following is a statement of the Board Members who have a membership and membership in other listed firm:

Name Other joint stock companies Board of Directors members

1 Saleh bin Hussein Al-Awajji Gulf Cooperation Council Interconnection Authority

2 Sulaiman bin Abdullah Alkadi

Saudi United Cooperative Insurance Company

Basic Chemical Industries Ltd.

Chemical Development Company

Saudi Hollandi Bank

3 Ahmed bin Abdullah Al-Aqeel

Southern Province Cement Company

Arab National Bank

Sanad Cooperative Insurance

Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services

4 Saleh bin Saad Al-Mehanna
Arab Bank – Amman – Jordan

Saudi International Ports

5 Saud bin Mohammed Al-Nemer Solidarity Saudi Takaful Company

C) Constructing the Board of Directors and classifying their memberships
All members of the Board of Directors Non-Executive Directors include three independent members. The following is a statement of the 
Board of Directors and the classification of their membership in the company:

Name Title Member Ranking

1 Saleh bin Hussein Al-Awajji Chairman of the Board Non-Executive Director

2 Sulaiman bin Abdullah Alkadi Vice Chairman of the Board Independent and
Non-Executive Director

3 Isam bin Alwan Al-Bayat Board Member Non-Executive Director

4 Yousef Ben Abd Alaziz Al-Turki Board Member Non-Executive Director

5 Abdulaziz bin Saleh Al-Fareih Board Member Non-Executive Director
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6 Saleh bin Saad Al-Mehanna Board Member Non-Executive Director

7 Ziad bin Mohammed Al-Shiha Board Member Non-Executive Director

8 Ahmed bin Abdullah Al-Aqeel Board Member Independent and
Non-Executive Director

9 Saud bin Mohammed Al-Nemer Board Member Independent and
Non-Executive Director

D) Board of Directors Committees
There are four standing committees in the Board of Directors during 2012, namely: the Audit Committee, the Executive Committee, the 
Committee on Human Resources, and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Below is a summary of the standing supervised by 
the Board of Directors in 2012.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee consists of 5 non-executive directors, including specialists in financial and accounting affairs. The company's 
General Assembly has approved the proposal of the Board of Directors on the rules of selection of its members, their membership duration 
and the working method of the committee. The Audit Committee has held 9 meetings during 2012, and the following table shows the 
names of the members of the Audit Committee and the number of times they were each present

Name Title Number of times present

1 Abdulaziz bin Saleh Al-Fereih Chairman of the Committee 9

2 Saleh bin Saad Al-Mehanna Committee Member 8

3 Isam bin Alwan Al-Bayat Committee Member 8

4 Abdulrahman bin Ibrahim Al-Hamid Committee Member 7

5 Sulaiman bin Abdullah Al-Sakran Committee Member 5

The Audit Committee performs the following:
• Recommendation of the Governing Council and after that the General Assembly to choose the external auditors and determine their 

fees, taking into account when recommending them to be employed that they are independent.
• Reviewing the reports from the internal and external auditors, particularly in light of the administration's commitment rules and 

regulations, and internal and external accounting legal standards.
• Supervising the internal audit department in the company, in order to verify its effectiveness in the implementation of the tasks set by 

the Board of Directors.
• Studying the internal control system and compiling a written report stating its opinion and recommendations in this regard.
• Studying the internal audit reports and following up on the implementation of corrective actions mentioned in the notes.
• Following up the chartered accountants’ work and certifying any work outside the scope of audit work that is assigned to them during 

their audit work.
• Studying the audit plan with the accountant and legal stating comments.
• Studying the comments of the Auditor on the financial statements and following up on what needs to be done. 
• Studying the interim financial statements and the annual report prior to submitting them to the Board of Directors and offering their 

opinion, and recommendations.

• Studying the accounting policies used and the opinion and recommendations of the Governing Council.
• Raising independent Committee proposals and recommendations to the Governing Council to for approval.

Executive Committee
The Executive Committee consists of (5) members. The committee has held (10) meetings during 2012, and the following table shows the 
names of the members of the Executive Committee and the number of times they were each present

Name Title Number of times present

1 Saleh bin Hussein Al-Awajji Chairman of the Board 10

2 Saleh bin Saad Al-Mehanna Vice Chairman of the Board 10

3 Isam bin Alwan Al-Bayat Board Member 9

4 Yousef Ben Abd Alaziz Al-Turki Board Member 10

5 Ali bin Saleh Al-Barrak Committee Member - CEO 10

The Eexecutive Committee takes the responsibility of
• Reviewing the plans, and the studies related to the restructuring of the company's activities.
• Reviewing the general budget (capital and operating) and proposed projects by the executive management, as well as the studies, 

financing plans, and methods related it.
• Reviewing periodically the company's accomplishments as compared to the approved budgets.
• Considering referring to the Council on matters concerning the company.

Human Resources Committee
The Human Resources Committee consists of 5 members. The Committee held 7 meetings during 2012, and the following table shows 
the names of the members of the Human Resources Committee and the number of times each was present:

Name Title	 Number of times present

1 Sulaiman bin Abdullah Alkadi Chairman of the Board 6

2 Saleh bin Hussein Al-Awajji Board Member 6

3 Ahmed bin Abdullah Al-Aqeel Board Member 6

4 Saud bin Mohammed Al-Nemer Board Member 6

5 Ali bin Saleh Al-Barrak Committee Member - CEO 7

The Human Resources Committee specializes in the following:
• Reviewing the general policies and systems for human resources.
• Reviewing the salary scale and allowances for housing and transportation for company employees.
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• Nominating the Chief Executive Officer of the company and reviewing the annual allocations, rewards, and recommendations of the 
Council to extend its services.

• Nominating the qualified personnel for Executive Vice President and Senior Vice President positions, proposed by the Chief Executive, 
and promoting them, identifying their salaries, allowances, bonuses, and extending their services.

• Reviewing the amendments to the organizational structure of the company for Job Code 57 and above.
• Reviewing the general principles and criteria to select top management (department heads and above).
• Reviewing the foundations of the annual bonuses distribution approved by the Board of Directors.
• Reviewing the rules and regulations of the Human Resources department for retirement and health services, the Cooperative Fund, 

cutbacks, savings, and reviewing the list of the company sanctions, which are certified by the Ministry of Labour.
• Reviewing the foundations of the annual bonuses for all the employees.
• Considering referring to the Council on matters concerning human resources.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of 5 members. The committee held 2 meetings during 2012, and the following 
table shows the names of the members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the number of times they were each present: 

Name Title	 Number of times present

1 Ahmed bin Abdullah Al-Aqeel Chairman of the Board 2

2 Saud bin Mohammed Al-Nemer Board Member 2

3 Ziad bin 
Mohammed Al-Shiha Board Member 2

4 Abdulaziz bin Saleh Al-Fereih Board Member 2

5 Yousef bin Abdulaziz Al-Turki Board Member 2

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee specializes in doing the following:
• Recommendations to the Board of Directors for the Council membership of the candidates in accordance with policies and standards, 

making sure to exclude any person previously convicted of any crime involving unethical practices and dishonesty.
• Annual review of the needs of the appropriate skills required for the membership of the Board of Directors, as well as preparing a 

description of the capabilities and qualifications required for the membership of the Board of Directors, including identifying the time 
required for members of the Governing Council.

• Review the structure of the Board of Directors and make recommendations regarding changes that can be made.
• Identify weaknesses and strengths in the Board of Directors, and propose solutions in the company’s interest.
• Ensure independence of members on an annual basis and guarantee the absence of any conflict of interest of board member acting 

as board members of companies.
• Develop clear policies for compensation and remuneration of the Board of Directors and Senior Executives, taking into account the use 

of performance-related criteria

E) Giving bonuses and compensations to the Board members and Senior Executives
The following are the details of the bonuses and compensations paid to the members of the Board of Directors and five Senior Execu-
tives who received the highest bonuses and compensations, including the Chief Executive Officer and the CFO:

Statement Executive Board 
Members

Non-executive Members of the Board/
Independent Senior Executives

Salaries and compensations _ _ 5,558,517

Allowances _ 782,560 1,378,175

Periodic and annual bonuses _ 2,274,862 1,835,611

Stimulus plans _ _ _

Any compensations or other 
benefits are paid on a monthly 

or annual basis
_ _ _

Total _ 3,057,422 8,772,303

F) Penalties and sanctions imposed on the company
There is no punishment, penalty or restriction imposed on the company, reservations from the Capital Market Authority or from any 
supervisory, regulatory, or other jurisdictions.

G) Results of the annual review of internal control procedure effectiveness
The Audit Committee is supervised by the Board of Directors and consists of five members, two of whom are independent of the Council 
and are tasked with studying periodic reports prepared by the internal audit in the company's assessment of internal control procedures 
in terms of design. The Commission follows up its own internal audit recommendations to address the follow-up observations and 
corrections. The Commission also considers the effectiveness of internal control procedures in general through internal audit reports 
and the fairness specifically of the financial lists. It bears in mind that any internal control system, regardless of how safe its design and 
effectiveness of its application, cannot provide absolute assurance.

25 - Report of the Chartered Accountant 
The General Assembly approved the first session held on 2/4/2012 for the appointment of Ernst & Young Office Legal & Co. as an 
accountant of the company for the fiscal year that ended 31/12/2012. The report did not include any reservations on the annual financial 
statements from the company's legal accountant.

26 - Council recommendation on the company's legal accountant
The Board of Directors has not made any recommendations for replacing the chartered accountant since its adoption in the previous 
General Assembly.
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Conclusion
In conclusion, the Board of Directors of the Saudi Electricity 

Company is pleased to offer their sincere thanks and appreciation to 
all the employees of the company on their continuous and sincere 
efforts to achieve its objectives and for their dedication to its best 
interests and gains in addition to raising its competitiveness. We 

look forward to implementing plans and programs to support and 
promote the economic and social development of the Kingdom, and 

to fulfill its requirement of electrical energy.
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First
Approving the Board of Directors 
report for the year ending 
31/12/2012.

Sixth
Approving the appointment of 
the auditor to the company's 
accounts proposed by the Audit 
Committee. The auditor will 
review the financial statements 
for the fiscal year 2013, 
quarterly financial statements, 
including examining the financial 
statements for the second, 
third and fourth quarters, and 
checking the financial statements 
for the first quarter of 2014.

Fourth
Approving the proposal of the 
Board of Directors on how to 
distribute the net profit for the year 
ended 31/12/2012 including the 
distribution of cash dividends of 
70 halalas per share representing 
7% par value of the capital to 
public, individual, shareholders, 
and the like provided that priority 
will be given to shareholders 
holding shares of the company at 
the end of the trading day of the 
General Assembly.  The dividends 
will be paid within a month from 
the date of the meeting of the 
General Assembly.

Second
Approving the company's auditor 
report for the financial year 
ending 31/12/2012.

Eighth
Approving the remuneration of the 
Board of Directors for the financial 
year ending 31/12/2012.

Fifth
Discharging the members of the 
Board of Directors for the fiscal year 
ending 31/12/2012.

Third
Approving the company's 
financial statements as of 
31/12/2012.

The Board of Directors recommends the following to the twelfth General Assembly of the company.

Recommendations
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Seventh
Approving the adoption of policies, 
standards and procedures for 
membership in the Administration 
Council. Information is available at 
the Department of Shareholders 
Affairs, and on the official site of the 
Saudi Electricity Company (http://
www.se.com.sa/sec/arabic)



Financial 
Statements
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Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders of Saudi Electricity Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Scope of audit
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Saudi Electricity Company (“the Company”) – a Saudi Joint Stock 
Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) as at 31 December 2012 and the related consolidated statements of income, cash flows and 
changes in shareholders’ equity for the year then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Group’s 
management and have been prepared by them in accordance with the provisions of Article 123 of the Regulations for Companies and 
submitted to us together with all the information and explanations which we required. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable degree of assurance to enable us to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Unqualified opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole:

1. present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2012 and the consolidated 
results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in 
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. 

2. comply with the requirements of the Regulations for Companies and the Company’s by-laws in so far as they affect the preparation 
and presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

for Ernst & Young

Rashid S. AlRashoud
Certified Public Accountant
Registration No. 366

Riyadh: 14 Rabi Thani 1434H

               (24 February 2013) 
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Saudi Electricity Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2012
(In Thousands Saudi Riyals)

Note 2012 2011

ASSETS 
CuRRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 4 3,045,786 7,306,624
Receivables from electricity consumers and 
accrued revenues, net 5 13,427,260 12,027,200

Prepayments and other receivables, net 6 5,193,853 4,853,625
Inventories, net 7 5,821,473 5,562,850
TOTAL CuRRENT ASSETS 27,488,372 29,750,299
NON-CuRRENT ASSETS
Loan to an associated company 365,500 365,500
Equity investments in companies and others 8 2,190,812 2,404,542
Construction work in progress 9 39,889,549 22,260,811
Fixed assets, net 10 168,652,100 158,673,259
TOTAL NON-CuRRENT ASSETS 211,097,961 183,704,112
TOTAL ASSETS 238,586,333 213,454,411
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EquITY
CuRRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 11 34,509,177 26,241,202
Accruals and other payables 12 4,735,729 4,605,942
Short term loans and current portion of  
long-term loans 14 1,468,000 3,133,100

Sukuk 15 - 5,000,000
TOTAL CuRRENT LIABILITIES 40,712,906 38,980,244
NON-CuRRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term loans 14 12,196,986 13,581,788
Sukuk 15 20,562,990 14,000,000
Employees’ indemnities 16 5,168,181 4,838,509
Deferred revenues, net 17 22,289,701 20,469,575

Customers’ refundable deposits 1,453,806 1,367,628

Government loans 18 23,374,496 18,845,211
Long-term Government payables 19 58,487,223 49,046,508
Change in fair value of hedging contracts 20 370,748 431,870
TOTAL NON-CuRRENT LIABILITIES 143,904,131 122,581,089
TOTAL LIABILITIES 184,617,037 161,561,333
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 21 41,665,938 41,665,938
Statutory reserve 1,810,599 1,554,492
General reserve 22 540,330 538,343
Retained earnings 26/30 10,323,177 8,566,175
Net change in fair value of hedging contracts 20 (370,748) (431,870)
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EquITY 53,969,296 51,893,078
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EquITY 238,586,333 213,454,411

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
(IN THOUSANDS SAUDI RIYALS)

Note 2012 2011

OPERATING REVENuES

Electricity sales 31,101,888 28,280,494

Meter reading, maintenance, and bills preparation tariff 937,529 883,059

Electricity connection tariff 17 1,515,790 1,330,533

Other operating revenues 91,052 75,512

TOTAL OPERATING REVENuES 33,646,259 30,569,598

COST OF SALES

Fuel (6,228,717) (5,771,379)

Purchased energy 29/c (4,565,148) (4,256,237)

Operations and maintenance 23 (8,726,637) (8,238,710)

Depreciation - Operations and maintenance 10 (10,522,344) (9,601,779)

TOTAL COST OF SALES (30,042,846) (27,868,105)
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GROSS PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 3,603,413 2,701,493

General and administrative expenses 24 (390,448) (434,537)

Depreciation - General and administrative 10 (313,537) (335,281)

INCOME FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2,899,428 1,931,675

Human recourses productivity improvement program 16/a (634,268) (125,265)

Other income and expenses, net 25 295,906 406,749

Net Income For The Year 2,561,066 2,213,159

EARNING PER SHARE (SR):

From operating activities for the year 0.7 0.46

From net income for the year 0.61 0.53 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
(In Thousands Saudi Riyals)

2012 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income for the year 2,561,066 2,213,159

ADJuSTMENTS TO RECONCILE NET INCOME FOR THE 

YEAR WITH NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Provision for doubtful receivables 252,483 121,721

Provision for slow-moving inventories 171,322 62,960

Share in investees’ net losses 63,729 45,747

Depreciation 10,835,881 9,937,060

Gain on disposal of fixed assets, net (85,556) (25,860)

Employees’ indemnities, net 329,672 148,291

CHANGES IN OPERATING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES:

Receivables from electricity consumers and accrued revenues (1,652,543) (2,183,914)

Prepayments and other receivables (340,229) (1,218,389)

Inventories (429,945) 79,076

Accounts payable 8,267,975 4,365,159

Deferred revenues, net 1,820,126 3,732,630

Accruals and other payables 116,519 195,481

NET PROCEEDS AND PAyMENTS FROM CUSTOMERS’  
REFUNDABLE DEPOSITS

86,178 72,186

Net cash from operating activities 21,996,678 17,545,307

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Equity investment in companies and others 150,000 (150,939)

Fixed assets and construction work in progress (38,466,266) (29,205,430)

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 108,362 33,332

Proceeds from other investments -          1,000

Net cash used in investing activities (38,207,904) (29,322,037)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Government loans 13,970,000 7,500,000

Net (repayment) proceeds from long-term loans (3,049,902) 4,893,181

Net proceeds from Sukuk 1,562,990 -         

Dividends paid to shareholders and Board of 
Directors’ remuneration

(532,700) (537,603)

Net cash from financing activities 11,950,388 11,855,578

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EquIVALENTS 

DuRING THE YEAR

(4,260,838) 78,848

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 7,306,624 7,227,776

CASh AND CASh EqUivAlENTS, END OF ThE YEAR 3,045,786 7,306,624

NON-CASH TRANSACTION:
Change in fair value of hedging contracts 61,122 (43,942)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
(In Thousands Saudi Riyals)

Note Share 
Capital

Statutory 
Reserve

General 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Change in 
Fair Value 

for Hedging 
Contracts

Total

For The Year Ended  
31 December 2011
Balance as at 1 January 2011- before 
adjustments

41,665,938 1,333,176 536,177 7,122,345 -       50,657,636

Prior years adjustments 30 -       -       -       -       (387,928) (387,928)

Balance as at 1 January 2011 - adjusted 41,665,938 1,333,176 536,177 7,122,345 (387,928) 50,269,708

Dividends to shareholders for 2010 26 -       -       -       (547,252) -       (547,252)

Board of Directors› remuneration for 2010 27 -       -       -       (761) -       (761)

Net income for the year -       -       -       2,213,159 -       2,213,159

Net change in fair value of hedging 
contracts

-       -       -       -       (43,942) (43,942)

Adjustment of electricity fee collected 
from individuals

22 -       -       2,166 -       -       2,166

Transfer to statutory reserve -       221,316 -       (221,316) -       -       

Balance as at 31 December 2011 41,665,938 1,554,492 538,343 8,566,175 (431,870) 51,893,078

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012

Dividend to shareholders for 2011 26 -       -       -       (547,252) -       (547,252)

Board of Directors› remuneration for 2011 27 -       -       -       (705) -       (705)

Net income for the year -       -       -       2,561,066 -       2,561,066

Net change in fair value of hedging 
contracts

-       -       -       -       61,122 61,122

Adjustment of electricity fee collected 
from individuals

22 -       -       1,987 -       -       1,987

Transfer to statutory reserve -       256,107 -       (256,107) -       -       

Balance as at 31 December 2012 41,665,938 1,810,599 540,330 10,323,177 (370,748) 53,969,296

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
1. ORGANIZATION AND ACTIVITIES
The Saudi Electricity Company “the Company” was formed pursuant to the Council of Ministers’ Resolution Number 169 dated 11 Sha’ban 
1419H corresponding to  29 November 1998, which reorganized the Electricity Sector in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia by merging the 
majority of the local companies that provided electricity power services (10 joint stock companies that covered most of the geographical 
areas of the Kingdom), in addition to the projects of the General Electricity Corporation, a governmental corporation related to the Ministry 
of Industry and Electricity (11 operating projects that covered various areas in the north of the Kingdom) in Saudi Electricity Company.

The Company was founded pursuant to the Royal Decree No. M/16 dated 6 Ramadan 1420H corresponding to 13 December 1999, in 
accordance with the Council of Ministers’ Resolution Number 153, dated 5 Ramadan 1420H corresponding to 12 December 1999 and 
the Minister of Commerce Resolution Number 2047 dated 30 Dhu Al Hijjah 1420H corresponding to 5 April 2000 as a Saudi joint stock 
company and was registered in Riyadh under Commercial Registration Number 1010158683, dated 28 Muharram 1421H corresponding 
to 3 May 2000.

The Company’s principal activity is the generation, transmission and distribution of electric power. The Company is the major provider of 
electric power all over the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, serving governmental, industrial, agricultural, commercial and residential consumers.

The Company is a tariff regulated company. Electricity tariffs are determined by the Council of Ministers based on recommendations from 
the Electricity and Co-generation Regulatory Authority (the Authority) which was established on 13 November 2001 according to Council 
of Ministers’ Resolution No. 169 dated  11 Sha’aban 1419H. The change on tariff was made through the Council of Ministers Resolution 
Number 170 dated 12 Rajab 1421H and was effective from 1 Sha’aban 1421H corresponding to 28 October 2000 whereby the tariff on 
the highest bracket was set at a rate of 26 Halala per Kilowatts/hour.

This was further amended by the Council of Ministers in its Decision Number 333 dated 16 Shawwal 1430H, corresponding to 5 October 
2009, which granted the Board of Directors of the Electricity and Co-generation Regulatory Authority the right to review and adjust the 
non-residential (commercial, industrial and governmental) electricity tariff and approve them as long as the change does not exceed 26 
Halala for each kilowatt per hour, taking into consideration, among other matters, the electrical consumption at peak times. This tariff was 
implemented starting 19 Rajab 1431H, corresponding to 1 July 2010.

According to the Company’s bylaws, the Company’s financial year begins on 1st January and ends on 31st December from each Gregorian year.

ORGANIZATION AND ACTIVITIES  – (continued)
Following are the list of subsidiaries included in these consolidated financial statements:

Name of Subsidiary Country of incorporation
Ownership 
Percentage

(direct & indirect)
Business Activity

National Electricity  
Transmission Company Saudi Arabia 100%

Transmission power from generating stations to 
distribution network and operating and maintenance 

of electricity transmission system

Electricity Sukuk Company Saudi Arabia 100% Provide services and support needed in relation of 
issuing bonds and Sukuk by Saudi Electricity Company
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Dawiyat Telecom Company Saudi Arabia 100% Establishing, leasing, managing and operating 
electricity and fiber optic networks to provide 

telecommunications services

Morjan for Electricity Pro-
duction Company (under 
formation) 

Saudi Arabia 100% Establishing, developing, ownership, operating 
and maintenance of Rabigh project for Electricity 

production

Saudi Electricity Global  
Sukuk Company

Cayman Islands 100% Provide services and support needed in relation 
of issuing bonds and Sukuk by Saudi Electricity 

Company

2. Basis of Consolidation
The Company starts consolidating the financial statements of National Electricity Transmission Company and other subsidiaries during the 
year ended 31 December 2012. The Company decided to separate the transmission sector and transfer its related operating assets and 
operations to National Electricity Transmission Company which started its operations in 1st of January 2012, therefore these consolidated 
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 includes the assets, liabilities and operating results of the Company and its 
subsidiaries (the “Group”) mentioned in note (1) above “consolidated financial statements”.

A subsidiary company is that in which the Company has directly or indirectly a long term investment comprising an interest of more than 
50% in the voting capital or over which it exercises practical control. A subsidiary company is consolidated from the date of which the 
Company obtains control until the date that control ceases.

The Group’s intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in these consolidated financial statements.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards issued by the 
Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants (SOCPA). The significant accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Accounting Convention 
The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except for the measurement of fair value of 
investments, derivative financial instruments and government loans (received after 1 January 2009).

Accounting Estimates 
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting standards requires the use of 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting year. Although 
these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions at the reporting date, the actual results 
ultimately may differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and at bank balances, time deposits, and other investments which are convertible into 
known amounts of cash with maturities of three months or less from the date of deposit.

Electricity Consumers Receivables 
Electricity consumer receivables represent the amount not collected from the consumers at the consolidated balance sheet date, and are 
shown net of provision for doubtful receivables.

Inventories 
Generation, transmission, distribution and other materials and fuel inventory are stated at lower of cost or market value and calculated 
using the weighted average cost, net of provision for slow moving and obsolete items.

Inventory items that are considered an integral part of the generation plants, transmission and distribution networks, and other facilities 
such as strategic and reserve materials, are included in within fixed assets.

Investments 
Investments in Companies’ Equities 
Investments in companies of which the Group hold at least 20% of interest are accounted for using the equity method, whereby the 
investment is initially stated at cost, adjusted thereafter by the post acquisition change of the Group’s share in the net assets of the investee 
company. The Group’s share in the results of these Companies is recognised in consolidated statement of income when investees’ 
financial statements are issued.

Investments of less than 20% of share capital of unquoted Companies are stated at cost is considered as fair value. Income from these 
investments is recognised in consolidated statements of income when dividends are declared by the investee companies.

Investments Held to Maturity 
Investments that are acquired with the intention of being held to maturity are carried at cost (adjusted for any premium or discount), less 
any other than temporary decline in value. Such investments are classified as non-current assets with the exception of bonds which 
mature during the next fiscal year, which are classified as current assets. Income from these investments is recognized in the consolidated 
statement of income when realized.

Fixed Assets 
Fixed assets are stated at historical cost and, except for land, are depreciated over their estimated operational useful lives using the straight 
line method. Cost includes the cost of acquisition from supplier, direct labor, indirect construction costs, and borrowing costs up to the date 
the asset is placed into service. Costs of fixed assets sold or otherwise disposed off and related accumulated depreciation are removed from 
the accounts at the date of the sale or disposal. The resulting gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of income. 

Expenditure for repair and maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of income. Betterments that increase the value or 
materially extend the life of the related assets are capitalized. 

The estimated operational useful lives are as follows:
Buildings 20 to 30 years

Generation plant, equipment and spare parts 20 to 25 years

Transmission network, equipment and spare parts 20 to 30 years

Distribution network, equipment and spare parts 15 to 25 years

Other assets   4 to 20 years



5857

Impairment of noncurrent assets
The Group conducts periodic review of the carrying amount of its non-current assets to determine whether there is any evidence that those 
non-current assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such evidence exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to 
determine the extent of the impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of that asset, the Group estimates 
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of 
the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are immediately recognized as an expense in the 
consolidated statement of income.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to  the revised 
recoverable amount, provided that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined 
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized 
as income immediately in the consolidated statement of income.

Capitalization of borrowing costs 
Net borrowing cost which represents finance charges on long-term loans and any other finance costs charged to the Group net of any 
commission income for the year, is capitalized on all significant projects-in-progress with significant amount that require long period of 
time for construction. The borrowing cost capitalized on each project is calculated using the capitalization rate on the average amounts 
incurred on each project in progress.

Fixed-term government loan 
The fixed-term government loan is recognized at present value using an estimated discount rate for Group’s borrowing (for loans received 
after 1 January 2009). The difference between the amount received and the present value is recorded as deferred revenues (government 
grant) and presented under long-term government payables caption and recognized over the remaining years of the loan against the 
corresponding expenses.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting 
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its cash flow exposures to interest rates. Such derivative financial instruments 
are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured for any 
changes in its fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair 
value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from the changes in the fair value of derivatives determined as effective cash flow hedges are taken directly to 
the shareholders’ equity, while the ineffective portion of cash flow hedges, is recognised in the consolidated statement of income.
For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows 
that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecasted transaction or the 
foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for 
hedge accounting. At that time, for forecast transactions, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument previously recognised 
in shareholders’ equity is retained till the forecasted transaction occurs. If a hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net 
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in shareholders’ equity is transferred to the consolidated statement of income.

Accounts payable and accruals 
Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether billed by the supplier or not.

Provision for employees’ indemnity
Employees’ indemnity consists of the following:

Provision for end of service benefits:  
The end of service benefits are calculated in accordance with the Labor Law in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and charged monthly to the 
consolidated statement of income

Employees’ saving fund:  
The Group contributes in saving fund for the eligible employees based on an approved policy. The Group’s share of the contribution in 
saving fund is charged monthly to the consolidated statements of Income.

Zakat provision
Zakat is provided in accordance with the Regulations of the Department of Zakat and Income Tax in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. 
Adjustments arising from final Zakat assessment, if any, are recorded in the consolidated statement of income for the year in which such 
assessment is obtained. 

Statutory reserve 
In accordance with the Regulations for Companies and the Company’s by-laws, 10% of net income for the year is transferred to statutory 
reserve. The Company’s General Assembly may discontinue such transfer when the reserve equals 50% of the share capital.

Revenues 
Revenue from electricity sales is recognized when bills are issued to consumers based on the consumption of electric power measured by 
Kilowatt/hour. Revenue on power consumed by consumers but not yet billed at the consolidated balance sheet date are accrued for.

Revenue from meter reading, maintenance and bills preparation tariff represents the monthly fixed tariff based on the capacity of the meter used 
by the subscribers, and is recognized when bills are issued. Revenue from meter reading, maintenance and bills preparation tariff not billed at the 
consolidated balance sheet date is accrued for.

Electricity service connection tariff received from consumers is deferred and recognized on a straight-line basis over the average useful lives of 
the equipment used in serving the subscribers, estimated to be 20 years.

Expenses 
Operation and maintenance expenses include expenses relating to generation, transmission, and distribution activities as well as their 
allocated portion of the general services and supporting activities’ expenses. The remaining portion of these expenses is included under 
General and Administrative expenses. General services and supporting activities expenses are allocated between the main activities based 
on the benefits received and are evaluated periodically.

Earnings (loss) per share for the year 
Earnings (losses) per share is calculated using  the weighted average  number of outstanding shares at the end of the year , including government 
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shares. Earnings (loss) per basic share from operating activities is calculated by dividing income (loss) from operations on the weighted average 
number of shares. Earnings (loss) per basic share from net income (loss) is calculated by dividing net income (loss) on weighted average of number 
of shares. 

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Saudi Riyals at exchange rates prevailing at the date of such transactions. 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the consolidated balance sheet date are translated into Saudi Riyals at 
the exchange rates prevailing at that date. Any realized or unrealized exchange gains or losses arising from such translations are recorded 
in the consolidated statement of income.

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

2012 2011

SR’000 SR’000

Cash on hand 3,352 3,040

Cash at banks 1,332,951 1,767,994

Short-term deposits 1,709,483 5,535,590

Total 3,045,786 7,306,624

5. Receivables From Electricity Consumers And Accrued Revenues, Net

2012 2011

SR’000 SR’000

Electricity subscribers’ receivable

Governmental institutions 4,364,978 2,870,026

Commercial and residential 4,232,203 4,861,644

VIPs consumers 2,501,513 2,359,212

Saudi Aramco 2,228,922 1,908,179

Electricity connection receivables 1,359,573 1,011,039

Saline Water Conversion Corporation 231,579 335,981

Total electricity subscribers’ receivable 14,918,768 13,346,081

Less: Provision for doubtful receivables (2,753,079) (2,500,596)

Net electricity subscribers’ receivable 12,165,689 10,845,485

Add: Accrued revenues 1,261,571 1,181,715

Total 13,427,260 12,027,200

The movement in the provision for doubtful receivables during the years as follows:

2012 2011

SR’000 SR’000

Balance at the beginning of the year 2,500,596 2,378,875

Charge for the year 252,483 121,721

Balance at the end of the year 2,753,079 2,500,596

6. Prepayments and Other Receivables, Net

2012 2011

SR’000 SR’000

Advances to contractors and suppliers 4,208,215 3,899,552

Other government receivables 244,173 244,173

Outstanding letters of credit 158,247 191,431

Prepaid expenses 47,126 10,477

Other receivables, net 596,881 568,781

Total 5,254,642 4,914,414

Less: Provision for other doubtful receivables (60,789) (60,789)

Total 5,193,853 4,853,625

7. inventories, Net

2012 2011

SR’000 SR’000

Generation plant materials and supplies 3,004,718 3,086,034

Distribution network materials and supplies 2,131,952 1,792,098

Transmission network materials and supplies 343,475 289,494

Fuel and oil 401,477 326,160

Other 375,194 333,085

6,256,816 5,826,871

Less: Provision for slow-moving inventory (435,343) (264,021)

Total 5,821,473 5,562,850
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The movement of provision for slow-moving inventories during the years as follows:

2012 2011

SR’000 SR’000

Balance at the beginning of the year 264,021 201,061

Charge for the year 171,322 62,960

Balance at the end of year 435,343 264,021

8. Equity Investments in Companies and Others

2012 2011

SR’000 SR’000

Investments accounted for under the equity method (a) 1,790,162 1,853,892

Other investments, at cost (b) 125,650 125,650

Held to maturity investments (c) 275,000 425,000

Total 2,190,812 2,404,542

A. Investments accounted for under the equity method

Ownership 2012 2011

% SR’000 SR’000

Gulf Cooperation Council Interconnection  
Authority (a-1) 31.6% 1,768,428 1,830,937

Water and Electricity Company (a-2) 50% 14,182 13,955

Hajr for Electricity Production Company (a-3) 50% 5,000 5,000

Rabigh Electricity Company (a-4) 20% 552 2,000

Dhuruma Electricity Company (a-5) 50% 2,000 2,000

Total 1,790,162 1,853,892

(A-1) Gulf Cooperation Council Interconnection Authority
The Company has contributed in the capital of the Gulf Cooperation Council Interconnection Authority (hereafter referred to as “GCCIA”) 
at inception to enhance the electricity transmission and distribution between the member countries. The Company’s contribution in GCCIA 
amounts to USD 484.80 million equivalent to SR 1,818 million. 

(A-2) Water and Electricity Company
The Company entered into a partnership agreement with Saline Water Conversion Corporation to establish a limited liability company in the 

name of “Water and Electricity Company” pursuant to the Supreme Economic Council’s Decision No. 5/23 dated Rabi’Al-Awal 23, 1423H 
which encourages the participation of the private sector in the water desalination project. The Company’s share at inception amounting to 
SR 15 million was paid in full and consists of 300,000 share representing 50% of the investee’s share capital.  

(A-3) Hajr for Electricity Production Company 
Pursuant to the Board of Directors’ Resolution No. 4/95/2010 dated Ramadan 12, 1431H corresponding to August 22, 2010 the Company 
established Hajr for Electricity Production Company with a share capital of SR 2 million. During 2011, a new partner has been admitted and 
the capital has been increased by SR 8 million to become SR 10 million. The company’s share represents 50% of the partners’ shareholding. 

(A-4) Rabigh Electricity Company 
Based on the company’s Board of Directors Resolution No. 06/76/2008 dated Jumada Al-Awal 26, 1429H corresponding to June 3, 
2008, the Company established Rabigh Electricity Company. The Company’s share capital amounting to SR 2 million was paid in full and 
represents 100% of the investee’s share capital.

During the third quarter of 2009, Rabigh Electricity Company increased its capital from SR 2 million to SR 10 million by admission of new 
partners which resulted in the decrease of Saudi Electricity Company’s share from 100% to 20%.

(A-5) Dhuruma Electricity Company 
Based on the company’s Board of Directors Resolution No. 4/88/2009 dated Ramadan 18, 1430H corresponding to September 8, 2009, 
the Company established Dhuruma Electricity Company (a closed joint stock company) with a share capital of SR 2 million. During 2011, 
a new partner has been admitted and the capital has been increased by SR 2 million to become SR 4 million. The company’s share 
represents 50% of the share capital.

B. Other investments, at cost

Ownership 2012 2011

% SR’000 SR’000

Al-Shuaiba Water and Electricity company 8% 124,840 124,840

Al-Shuqaiq Water and Electricity company 8% 400 400

Al-Jubail Water and Electricity company 5% 250 250

Al-Shuaiba Holding Company 8% 160 160

Total 125,650 125,650

C. Held to maturity investments

2012 2011

SR’000 SR’000

Saudi Basic Industries Corporation Sukuk 150,000 300,000
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Bin Laden Company Sukuk 50,000 50,000

SABB bonds “Saudi British Bank” 50,000 50,000

SATORP Company Sukuk 25,000 25,000

Total  275,000 425,000

D. Share in net (loss) earnings of investees accounted for under equity method

2012 2011

SR’000 SR’000

Gulf Corporation Council Interconnection Authority (62,510) (45,905)

Water and Electricity Company 227 158

Rabigh Electricity company (1,446) -       

Total	 (63,729) (45,747)

9. Construction Work in Progress

2012

                                SR’000 2011

Generation 
Projects

Transmission 
Projects

Distribution 
Projects 

General 
projects Total Total

At the beginning of 
the year 10,468,360 6,374,291 5,082,281 335,879 22,260,811 26,038,186

Additions during  
the year 18,480,810 9,746,265 8,928,717 988,217 38,144,009 28,971,553

Transfer to  
fixed assets (6,053,943) (4,246,335) (9,461,420) (753,573) (20,515,271) (32,748,928)

Balance at 31 
December 2012 22,895,227 11,874,221 4,549,578 570,523 39,889,549

Balance at 31 
December 2011 10,468,360 6,374,291 5,082,281 335,879 22,260,811

Net borrowing cost capitalized on projects under construction during the year amounted to SR 1,222 million (2011: SR 1,151 million).
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10. Fixed Assets, Net

Land
SR’000

Buildings
SR’000

Machinery 
and 

equipment
SR’000

Capital 
spare parts

SR’000

Vehicles
and heavy 
equipment

SR’000

Others
SR’000

Total
2012

SR’000

Total
2011

SR’000

Cost:

At the 
beginning 
of the year

1,635,666 15,634,575 271,852,115 3,796,851 1,372,535 3,555,115 297,846,857 265,093,162

Additions 150,112 1,016,357 18,670,506 274,189 - 748,930 20,860,094 32,989,109

Disposals - (1,722) (342,632) - (44,609) (1,766) (390,729) (235,414)

At the end 
of the year 1,785,778 16,649,210 290,179,989 4,071,040 1,327,926 4,302,279 318,316,222 297,846,857

Depreciation:

At the 
beginning 
of the year

- 9,724,320 124,273,085 1,995,821 1,057,523 2,122,849 139,173,598 129,458,176

Charge for 
the year - 559,596 9,565,801 126,413 90,878 493,193 10,835,881 9,937,060

Disposals - (1,685) (297,297) - (44,609) (1,766) (345,357) (221,638)

At the end 
of the year - 10,282,231 133,541,589 2,122,234 1,103,792 2,614,276 149,664,122 139,173,598

Net book amounts:

At 31 
December 

2012
1,785,778 6,366,979 156,638,400 1,948,806 224,134 1,688,003 168,652,100

At 31 
December 

2011
1,635,666 5,910,255 147,579,030 1,801,030 315,012 1,432,266 158,673,259

Included in land are plots of land with book value of SR 276 million, the title deeds of which have not yet been transferred to the 
Company’s name.

Net book value of the Group’s fixed assets is allocated to the main activities as follows:

2012

SR’000

Generation Transmission Distribution General 
Property Total

Land 238,335 587,455 225,151 734,837 1,785,778

Buildings 2,561,834 2,697,919 189,048 918,178 6,366,979

Machinery &
equipment 63,324,685 47,920,744 45,106,974 285,997 156,638,400

Capital spare parts 1,493,202 401,649 53,765 190 1,948,806

Vehicles and heavy 
equipment - - - 224,134 224,134

Others 683,607 355,330 172,296 476,770 1,688,003

68,301,663 51,963,097 45,747,234 2,640,106 168,652,100

2011

SR’000

Generation Transmission Distribution General 
Property Total

Land 245,285 587,443 225,243 577,695 1,635,666

Buildings 2,722,760 2,120,588 152,154 914,753 5,910,255

Machinery &
equipment 61,584,469 46,955,880 38,746,741 291,940 147,579,030

Capital spare parts 1,365,071 415,759 20,017 183 1,801,030

Vehicles and heavy 
equipment - - - 315,012 315,012

Others 900,059 394,846 44,714 92,647 1,432,266

66,817,644 50,474,516 39,188,869 2,192,230 158,673,259
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Depreciation expenses charged to various activities during the year ended December 31 is as follows:

2012 2011

SR’000 SR’000

Generation depreciation expense 4,632,938 4,199,706

Transmission depreciation expense 2,950,727 2,788,722

Distribution depreciation expense 2,938,679 2,613,351

General property depreciation expense 313,537 335,281

10,835,881 9,937,060

11. Accounts Payable

2012 2011

SR’000 SR’000

Saudi Aramco for fuel cost 57,200,552 51,419,456

Transferred to Government account (a) (40,959,482) (40,959,482)

Saudi Aramco payable for fuel cost 16,241,070 10,459,974

Saline Water Conversion Corporation for energy purchased 8,836,619 8,453,968

Municipality fees 3,723,515 3,241,135

Advances received for construction of projects 2,367,238 633,768

Contractors and retention payables 755,294 761,301

Payables to suppliers 657,721 99,444

Other (b) 1,927,720 2,591,612

34,509,177 26,241,202

A. These amounts represent payables for fuel for the period from April 5, 2000 to December 31, 2009 which have been transferred from 
the liability to Saudi Aramco to non-current government  liability. (Note 19)
B. Other payables include SR 1,280 million (2011: SR 1,280 million) which are still under reconciliation between the Company and the 
Government and pertain to prior-merger account (refer to Note 1).

12. Accruals and Other Payables

2012 2011

SR’000 SR’000

Accrued expenses 3,550,470 3,631,647

Accrued employees’ benefits 426,962 370,139

Dividends payable * 355,197 339,940

Accrued interests on loans 170,311 82,389

Other 232,789 181,827

4,735,729 4,605,942

• Dividends payable as of December 31, 2012 include unclaimed cash dividends declared by Saudi Consolidated Electricity Company 
prior to merge, amounting to SR 88.6 million (2011: SR 91.5 million).

13. Zakat
The major components of zakat base are as follows:

2012 2011

SR’000 SR’000

Net income before zakat 2,561,066 2,213,159

Add: Zakat adjustment (10,313,776) (12,296,312)

Net adjusted loss (7,752,710) (10,083,153)

Zakat base is calculated as follows:

2012 2011

SR’000 SR’000

Share Capital 41,665,938 41,665,938

Net adjusted loss (7,752,710) (10,083,153)

Retained reserves 2,092,835 1,869,353

Retained earnings 8,018,923 7,123,345
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Retained allowances 6,971,363 7,050,373

Long term loans and sukuk 27,664,986 36,816,001

Government loans and payables 81,861,719 67,891,719

Consumers deposits, contractors accruals and others 2,478,119 2,558,748

Total 163,001,173 154,892,324

Deduct:

Fixed assets and construction work in progress, net (130,037,634) (131,259,163)

Difference on depreciation of fixed assets for previous years (65,111,874) (41,576,007)

Long term investments (2,254,541) (2,406,042)

Material and spare parts inventories (4,384,116) (4,218,398)

Zakat base (negative) (38,786,992) (24,567,286)

No Zakat is due on the Company for the year ended 31 December 2012 as the net adjusted loss and zakat base is negative. 

The Company has received the final assessments for the period ended in December 2001and also for the years from 2002 to 2008 
which showed Zakat differences of SR 37.5 million for the period ended in 31 December 2001 and the years 2002, 2003 and 2004. 
The Company filed appeals against these differences which are still pending with the Department of Zakat and Income Tax (DZIT). The 
Company filed its Zakat returns for the years 2009 to 2011 and are still under review by DZIT.

14.  long-term loans

2012 2011

SR’000 SR’000

At the beginning of the year 16,714,888 11,821,707

Withdrawal during the year 107,171 6,084,670

Repayments during the year (3,157,073) (1,191,489)

At the end of the year 13,664,986 16,714,888

Less: Current portion (1,468,000) (3,133,100)

Long-term balance at the end of the year 12,196,986 13,581,788

The maturities of long term installments for the next years as of December 31 are as follows:

2012 2011

SR’000 SR’000

After one year 1,469,701 1,468,000

Between two to three years 1,478,631 1,468,000

Between three to four years 1,478,631 1,468,000

Between four to five years 1,478,631 1,468,000

After five years 6,291,392 7,709,788

12,196,986 13,581,788

A. On 28 July 2008, the Company obtained a sharia-compliant loan for SR 6 billion from syndicates of local banks which has been 
fully withdrawn. The loan is repayable over 22 semi-annual installments starting 3 November 2009. The loan balance amounted to 
SR 4.1 billion as of 31 December 2012 (2011: SR 4.6 billion).  

B. The Company agreed with U.S. Export-Import Bank, and the Export Development Bank of Canada on 21 June 2009 and signed a 
financing agreement on 27 January 2010, whereby the Company will receive a direct loan amounting to US$ 1.1 billion equivalent to 
approximately SR 4.1 billion which has been fully withdrawn. The loan is repayable within 12 years over 24 semi-annual installments 
starting 25 May 2010. The loan balance amounted to SR 3 billion as of 31 December 2012 (2011: SR 3.4 billion).

C. On 13 July 2009, the Company signed a financing agreement with the Public Investments Fund whereby the Company will 
receive a direct loan of SR 2.6 billion which has been fully withdrawn. The loan is repayable within 15 years over 24 semi-annual 
installments. The loan balance amounted to SR 2.5 billion as of 31 December 2012 (2011: SR 2.6 billion).  

D. On 13 December 2010, the Saudi Electricity Company signed an agreement with a syndicate of local banks, whereby the Company 
will obtain a sharia - compliant loan of SR 5 billion, repayable over 26 semi-annual installments after 24 months from the date of 
signing the agreement. The loan balance amounted to SR 0.5 billion as of 31 December 2012 (2011: SR 0.5).

E. On 22 June 2011, the Company signed an agreement withinternational lenders guaranteed by Coface French Export Credit Agenc, 
The Company will receive a loan amounting to US$ 989.1 million equivalent to SR 3.7 billion which had been fully withdrawn. The 
loan is repayable within 12 years over 24 semi-annual installments starting 11 January 2012. The loan balance amounted to SR 
3.4 billion as of 31 December 2012 (2011:SR 3.7).

F. The Company signed a loan agreement guaranteed by two Export Korean banks (K Sure and K Exim) where a group of international 
banks participated in financing the loan led by HSBC Group, Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi , Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation, 
Mizuho Bank and KFW-IPEX. The Company will receive a loan amounting to SR 5.3 billion equivalent to approximately US$ 1,400 
million for a period of 15 years. The loan is repayable over 12 years in equal semi-annual installments starting after grace period of 
3 years. The loan balance amounted to SR 107 million as of 31 December 2012

Long term loans mentioned above are used to finance the construction work in progress projects, and secured by promissory notes 
signed by the Company at the nominal amount of the loan plus the interest payments and/or Murrabaha Margin.
The Company has an unutilized credit facilities with local banks amounting to SR 1 billion as at 31 December 2012 (2011: SR 1 billion).
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15. Sukuk
The outstanding Sukuk as of 31 December 2012 are as follows:
Local Sukuk:

Issue Date of issue Par value Total issued amount Maturity date

Sukuk 2 6 July 2009 SR 100,000 SR 7 Billion 2029

Sukuk 3 10 May 2010 SR   10,000 SR 7 Billion 2030

The above Sukuk have been, issued at par value with no discount nor premium. The Sukuk bear a rate of return at SIBOR plus a margin 
payable quarterly from the net income received from the Sukuk assets held by the Sukuk custodian “Electricity Sukuk Company”, a 
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

The Company has undertaken to purchase these Sukuk from Sukuk holders at dates specified in prospectus. For each purchase date, 
the Company shall pay an amount equal to 10% of the aggregate face value of the Sukuk as bonus to the Sukuk holders. The purchase 
price is determined by multiplying Sukuk’s par value at the percentage shown against the purchase date, as follows: 

Percentage

                90%                                          60%                                                        30%

Issue      First purchase date               Second purchase date                        Third purchase date

Sukuk 2 2014 2019 2024

Sukuk 3 2017 2020 2025

On 15 July 2012, the Company fully purchased the assets of its first Sukuk issued (Sukuk1) amounting to SR 5 billion.

Global Sukuk:
During April 2012 the Company issued Sukuk amounting to SR 6.6 billion equivalent to approximately US$ 1,750 million where the 
issuance consists of two types of Sukuk certificates. The first type amounting to US$ 500 million mature after 5 years with fixed rate of 
2.665%, the second type amounting to US$ 1,250 million mature after 10 years with fixed rate of 4.211%. 

16. Employees’ indemnities

2012 2011

SR’000 SR’000

Provision for end-of-service indemnities 4,354,255 4,536,870

Employee savings fund 394,475 301,639

Human recourses productivity improvement program (the Program)-(a) 419,451 -       

5,168,181 4,838,509

(a) This amount represents the present value of future payments which the Company has commitment to pay according to the program’s 
plan and conditions. The objective of this program is to improve and align human recourses with business requirements.

17. Deferred Revenues, Net

2012    2011    

SR’000 SR’000

Balance at the beginning of the year 20,469,575 16,736,945

Proceeds from connection tariff services during the year 3,335,916 5,063,163

Electrical connection tariff (1,515,790) (1,330,533)

22,289,701 20,469,575

18. Government Loans
A. Pursuant to the Ministerial resolution number 169 dated Sha’ban 11, 1419H, the net dues of the Government to the Saudi Electricity 

Company and the net dues of the Company to the Government were determined in accordance with rules and procedures 
stipulated in the minutes of meetings signed by his HE the Minister of Industry and Electricity and HE the Minister of Finance 
and National Economy dated Jumada Thani 27, 1418H corresponding to October 29, 1997. The net difference payable to the 
Government by the Company, as determined at the close of the business day preceding the issuance of the Royal Decree for the 
incorporation of the Company, is considered a non-interest bearing long term loan (soft loan) with a grace period of twenty five 
years starting from the date of the announcement of the incorporation of the Company. The loan is to be revisited later on subject 
to the financial condition of the Government and the Company.
The minutes of the meeting held on Rajab 21, 1422H between the Minister of Industry and Electricity and the Minister of Finance 
and National Economy in which the initial amount of the Government loan was determined, states that the final settlement of 
Government accounts will be subject to the reconciliation for the claims of the Company from Government entities, and the loan 
amount shall be adjusted accordingly. During 2005, the Company finalized the amount due which included the claims of the 
Company and the amounts due to the Government and the agreement was signed between the Minister of Water and Electricity 
and the Minister of Finance on Rajab 15, 1426H which brought the balance of Government loan  amounted to SR 14.9 billion.

B. The Council of Ministers approved in its meeting held on Monday 12 Jumada Al-Awal 1431H corresponding to 26 April 2010 
to grant the Company a soft loan amounting to SR 15 billion repayable over 25 years. The loan will be paid to the Company 
within 2 years in accordance with an agreement that will be prepared for this purpose between the Ministry of Finance and the 
Saudi Electricity Company. The agreement was signed on 15 Ramadan 1431H, corresponding to 25 August 2010, this loan has 
been fully withdrawn as at 31 December 2012 (2011: SR. 11,3 billion). the Company recognized the amount received from the 
government loan above discounted at its present value as per the accounting policies in Note (3).

C. The Council of Ministers approved in its meeting held on Monday 11 Rajab 1432H corresponding to 13 June 2011 to grant the 
Company a soft loan amounting to SR 51.1 billion repayable over 25 years, The loan will be paid to the Company within 5 years 
in accordance with an agreement that will be prepared for this purpose between the Ministry of Finance and the Saudi Electricity 
Company. An amount of SR 10.2 billion from this loan has been withdrawn as at 31 December 2012 (2011:nill). The Company 
recognized the amount received from the government loan above discounted at its present value as per the accounting policies 
in Note (3).
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19. Long-term Government Payables 

As shown in (note 11-a)  the accounts  payable for fuel for the period from 5 April 2000 to 31 December 2009 amounting to SR 41 billion 
has been transferred from current liabilities to non-current liabilities (long-term governmental payables) pursuant to the Ministerial minutes 
of meeting dated 15 Jumada Awal 1427H (corresponding to 11 June 2006) and 6 Safar 1433H (corresponding to 31 December 2011) 
and based on the Ministerial Resolution number 277, which resolved to transfer the Company’s liability of Saudi Aramco Company (Saudi 
Aramco) to the Ministry of Finance account.

Also, the Government payable includes an amount of SR 16.8 billion represents the difference between the amount proceed from 
Government as a soft loans and the discounted present value of these loans (Note 18- (b) & (c)).

20. Derivatives 
The Company entered into interest rate hedging contracts with several banks to hedge the fluctuation of interest rates on loans for an 
amount of SR 2.6 billion on 31 December 2012 (2011: SR 3.4 billion) which includes a US Dollar portion representing approximately 15% 
of the national amount. The hedging contracts are based on the swap between the Company and the banks of fixed rates against floating 
rates on the original loan amounts every six-months.

21. Share Capital 
The share capital of the Company is SR 41,665,938,150 divided into 4,166,593,815 shares with a par value of SR 10 each and is held 
as follows:

Numbers of shares Ownership Percentage

Government 3,096,175,320 74,31%

Saudi Aramco 288,630,420 6,93%

Other shareholders
781,788,075 18,76%

4,166,593,815 100%

22. General Reserves
General reserve consists of the balances of the reserves amounting to SR 213,668 Thousands that were reflected in the books of the 
Saudi Electricity Company at the date of the merger, and investment income from electricity fund of SR 294,976 as well as the collections 
of surcharge from individuals subsequent to December 31, 2001 amounting to SR 31,686 thousand up to December 31, 2012 (2011: SR 
29,699 thousand). The total general reserve amounted to SR 540,330 thousand as at December 31, 2012 (2011: SR 538,343 thousand).

23. Operation and Maintenance Expenses

2012

SR’000

2011

SR’000

Generation Transmission Distribution Total Total

Employees’ expenses and 
benefits 1,220,497 670,810 2,356,588 4,247,895 4,489,946

Materials 754,139 65,548 232,714 1,052,401 1,056,090

Operation and maintenance 
(contractors) 371,564 97,090 418,805 887,459 878,848

Provision for doubtful 
receivables -    -      252,483 252,483 121,721

Provision for slow moving 
inventory 104,554 11,571 28,129 144,254 50,353

Municipality fees -      -      482,814 482,814 436,969

Others 960,306 182,523 516,502 1,659,331 1,204,783

3,411,060 1,027,542 4,288,035 8,726,637 8,238,710
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24. General and Administrative Expenses

2012

SR’000

2011

SR’000

Employees’ expenses and benefits 209,872 279,414

Materials 44,926 42,729

Provision for slow moving inventory 27,068 12,607

Others 108,582 99,787

390,448 434,537

25. Other income and Expenses, Net

2012

SR’000

2011

SR’000

Gain on disposal of fixed assets 85,556 25,860

Penalties 127,671 172,969

Share in net loss of investee companies accounted for under the  
equity method (Note 8-d) (63,729) (45,747)

Sale of tender documents 30,676 28,952

Others, net 115,732 224,715

295,906 406,749

26. Dividends

In accordance with the Company’s by-laws, dividends of at least 5% of paid in capital, net of reserve, should be distributed to shareholders, 
with due care to the provisions of the Council of Ministers’ Resolution No. 169 dated 11 Sha’aban 1419H, whereby the Government has 
waived its share from the distributed dividends for a period of ten years from the date of the Company’s formation, provided that dividends 
do not exceed 10% of the par value of the shares. In cases where the distribution exceeds 10% of the shares’ par value, the Government’s 
share shall be treated similar to the share of other shareholders. The Government has agreed to extend this waiver for another ten years 
commencing from 30 Thul Hijja 1430H, based on the Council of Ministers’ Resolution No. 327 dated 24 Ramadan 1430H.

The General Assembly, in its meeting held on 2 April 2012, approved to distribute of cash dividends for 2011 to individuals shareholders 
amounting of SR 547 million (SR 0.7 per share) representing 7% of the par value per share (2010: SR 547 million). 

The board of directors in its meeting held on 14 Rabi Thani 1434H corresponding 24 February 2013, proposed to distribute cash dividends 
for 2012 to individuals shareholders amounting to SR 547 million. (SR 0.7 per share), representing 7% of the par value per share. These are 
subject to the approval of the Company’s general meeting.

27. Board of Directors’ Remuneration and Allowances 

The expenses and allowances attributable to attending the board of directors meetings and other subcommittee meeting for the year 
amounted to SR 783 thousand (2011: SR 605 thousand).

The General Assembly has approved in its meeting held on 2 April 2012, Board of Directors’ remuneration of SR 705 thousand from the 
retained earnings for the year 2011 (2010: SR 761 thousand).

The board of directors in its meeting held on 14 Rabi Thani 1434H corresponding 24 February 2013, proposed board’s remuneration of SR 
919 thousand after the distribution of dividends to individual shareholders not less than 5%  of the share capital. This is subject to general 
meeting’s approval.

28. Related Parties Transactions 

The Company provides electricity power to governmental agencies, ministries and Saudi Aramco Company (Saudi Aramco). The rates 
applied are approved by the Council of Ministers and are similar to the rates applied to other consumers, except for the rates used for 
Saline Water Conversion Corporation (SWCC) which is in accordance with a government resolution. As for the residential property of Saudi 
Aramco, the Company believes that these should be charged the commercial tariff. However, Saudi Aramco has objected to this tariff and 
is settling the electricity sales for the properties based on the industrial tariff. 

The Council of Ministers has issued a Resolution Number 114 on 10 Rabi Al-Thani 1430H to resolve this dispute and to charge Saudi 
Aramco on the basis of residential and commercial tariff instead of industrial tariff. Further, according to the resolution, The Electricity and 
Co-generation Regulatory Authority (the regulator) will have to specify the residential and commercial enterprises of Saudi Aramco and to 
identify the concerned party to handle the cost of construction, maintenance and operation for power stations and distribution networks. 
Accordingly, the Company, Saudi Aramco and the regulator held several meetings to settle this matter where the regulator has specified 
the disputed residential and commercial enterprises of Saudi Aramco.

The company executed the regulator decree number 49/432 dated 8 Jumada Awal 1432H classifying Saudi Aramco electricity consumption 
tariff during the year ended 31 December 2012 and the disputed residential and commercial enterprises mentioned above were identified 
and the difference should be calculated according to the regulator decree. Therefore, the agreed tariff were applied on Saudi Aramco 
consumption during the year ended 31 December 2012.  Further, the Company has completed the calculation – from its part  – for the 
previous years up to 31 December 2011 in according to regulator decree mentioned above and has submitted its invoices to Saudi 
Aramco with total amount of SR 730 million. However, the Company is still in process of completing the necessary procedures to record 
this revenue.

In addition, the Company purchases fuel from Saudi Aramco and electricity from Saline Water Conversion Corporation at rates stipulated 
for in the respective governmental resolutions. Also, fees are charged for municipalities on electricity power sales. 
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The significant transactions and related approximate balances are as follows:

2012

SR’000

2011

SR’000

Sales

Government 7,891,078 7,150,973

Saudi Aramco 1,634,046 1,490,989

Saline Water Conversion Corporation 183,818 194,021

9,708,942 8,835,983

Purchases and others

Saudi Aramco 6,161,196 5,514,247

Saline Water Conversion Corporation 532,633 573,407

Municipalities fees 482,815 436,969

7,176,644 6,524,623

29. Contingent Liabilities 
A. There is a dispute between the Company and Saudi Aramco for handling crude oil fees. The disputed amount since the Company’s 

inception on 5 April 2000 to 31 December 2012 amounted to approximately SR 3,291 million (2011: SR 2,886 million). The 
Company’s management believes that there will be no liability on the Company based on the Royal Decree Number M/8 dated 
25 Rajab 1415H as this matter was not discussed by the Ministerial Committee formed by the Royal Decree referred to above. 
Accordingly, the difference has not been recorded in the Company’s books. In addition, Saudi Aramco is supplying the Company 
with light fuel oil rather than heavy fuel oil to one of its stations. This has resulted in an accumulated difference of SR 1,200 million 
(2011: SR 858 million) not accounted for in the Company’s books.

B. Saudi Aramco has also a claim for the settlement of its share in the annual dividends since inception to 31 December 2011, 
estimated at SR 2,140 million. The Company believes that Saudi Aramco has no right for this claim during the first 20 years of its 
formation since it is a wholly owned government agency and accordingly, is governed by the Ministerial Resolution No. 169 dated 
11 Sha’aban 1419H and Ministerial Resolution No. 327 dated 24 Ramadan 1430H on extending the Government’s waiver of its 
rights in the profits distributed by the Saudi Electricity Company for another ten years.

C. The Company has long-term purchase energy agreements with independent power providers whereby the Company has undertake 
to purchase the whole energy produced by these providers according to specific terms and prices. These agreements are for periods 
up to 20 years, and renewable for further periods by mutual consent of both parties. 

D. The Company has provided guarantees to some of the commercial banks against its share in financing a loan granted to some of 
its investee companies. The guarantee amounted to US$ 74 million equivalent to SR 278 million as of 31 December 2012 (2011: 
US$ 117 million equivalent to SR 440 million). In addition, the Company has provided a guarantee for the Department of Zakat and 
Income Tax amounting to SR 37,5 million (2011:  SR 13 million).

E. The Company is contingently liable against outstanding letters of credit amounting to SR 1,2 million as of the consolidated balance 
sheet date (2011: SR 0,3 million).

30. Prior Years Adjustments
At the end of the first quarter of year 2011, the Company has evaluated the derivative financial instruments of the hedging contracts related 
to fixed versus floating interest rate swaps. Consequently, the opening balances of the shareholders’ equity change in fair value of hedging 
contracts – have been restated by SR 388 million as of 1 January 2011.

31. Capital Commitments 
These comprise the unexecuted portion – as of the consolidated balance sheet date - of capital contracts conducted by the Company for 
the erection and installation of power plants and other assets approximately amounting to SR 81,033 million (2011: SR 48,073 million). It 
is anticipated that these contracts to be completed between one to three years.

32. Risk Management 
Financial instruments included in the consolidated balance sheet consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable other 
assets, bank loans, account payable, accrued liabilities and other non-current liabilities.

Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the risk that one party will fail to discharge an obligation and will cause the other party to incur a financial loss.  The Group 
has proper diversification as of credit risk. Cash is substantially placed at financial institutions with sound investment grade credit ratings. 
Trade accounts receivable are shown, net of provision for doubtful debts.. 

Commission Rate Risk
Commission rate risk is the risk that the values of financial instrument will fluctuation due to changes in the market commission rates. The 
Group has no long-term assets commission bearing assets, but has liabilities associated with commission rates as of December 31, 2012. 
The Group manages its floating-rate loans through the use of commission rates hedging agreements, which have the economic effects to 
transfer the interest on the loans from floating to fixed rate.

Liquidity Risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial instruments. 
Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at an amount close to its fair value.  The Group manage liquidity risk 
by ensuring that sufficient funds are available to meet its future commitments.  

Currency Risk 
Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.  The management 
monitors the fluctuations in currency exchange rates and charge the results to consolidated financial statements accordingly.

Fair Value Risk
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s 
length transaction. As the Group’s financial instruments are prepared under the historical cost convention, differences can arise between 
the carrying values and fair value estimates. Management believes that the fair values of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities are not 
materially different from their carrying values.
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33. Segment Reporting and Future Restructure for The Group’s Activities
The Group’s main operating activities are divided into generation, transmission and distribution activities. These activities complement each 
other in delivering electricity to the consumer. The Group’s revenue is currently recognized from selling electricity to the end consumer 
based on the official Tariff set by the government. all group’s operations are based in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.
 
The Group is in process of applying integrated plan to spin off its principal activities to different independent entities and develop inter-face 
selling prices. Therefore revenues and expenses will be specified for each entity upon completion of such process. As part of the plan, 
National Electricity Transmission Company was established and basis of inter-company transaction agreements were approved by the 
board of directors. The National Electricity Transmission Company started its operations in 1 January 2012, its main activities are in the 
transmission of power from generating stations to distribution network and operating and maintenance of electricity transmission system.

The financial information of Saudi Electricity Company presented in the following table include the generating and distributing segments 
in addition to the head office, as the procedures of spinning-off the generation and distribution segments is still in process – till the date of 
consolidated financial statements preparation date-  as part of the Group’s spin off integrated plan.

Following are the important financial data of the main group companies:

Saudi Electricity 
Company 

National 
Electricity 

Transmission 
Company

Other 
Subsidiaries

Inter-Company 
Balances Total

SR’000 SR’000 SR’000 SR’000 SR’000

As of 31 December 2012

Fixed assets, net 116,689,002 51,963,098 - - 168,652,100

Total assets 259,502,616 58,931,030 29,420 (79,876,733) 238,586,333

Total liabilities 207,003,910 47,468,053 18,303 (69,873,229) 184,617,037

Due to the spinning –off  of  National Electricity Transmission Company on 1 January 2012 the comparable period data are not applicable, 
the procedures of accounting and approving revenues and expenses between National Electricity Transmission Company and the 
Company is still under process

34. Comparative Figures
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.


